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Summary and outlook
In June 2018, the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority (APVMA) celebrated its 25th
anniversary. This milestone provided an opportunity to
reflect on our achievements and set the stage for embracing
future opportunities.
Originally established in 1993 as the National Registration
Authority, we have a proud history of scientific expertise
and innovation as the national regulator of agricultural and
veterinary (agvet) chemicals. It is our collective expertise
and the dedication of our people that have driven improved
regulatory performance in 2017–18, and it is that same
commitment to world-class regulation that will endure as we
relocate to Armidale.

Improved operational performance and decision making
This year we delivered four consecutive quarters of improved regulatory performance.
On-time assessment of agricultural chemical product, permit and active applications
increased from 69 per cent in 2016–2017 to 73 per cent in 2017–18. In the three months
spanning April to June 2018, we achieved a new high, finalising 85 per cent of applications
within the statutory timeframes.
Our focus on improved registration processes and procedures has increased operational
efficiency, resulting in the approval of more than 3300 applications. That’s thousands of
new products, and new uses for existing products, that support Australia’s agricultural
productivity, enhance animal health, and deliver safe and effective consumer products.
Delivering world firsts has further demonstrated our commitment to improved regulatory
performance. In 2018 Australia was first to approve the registration of a new insecticide
to help control aphids and silverleaf whitefly in cotton and vegetables, and first to approve
a biological, present as a palatable feed supplement, used to treat gastrointestinal
parasites in grazing animals.
We commissioned an independent review of assessment performance to identify the
underlying causes for delays in assessment and registration. The review confirmed that
fluctuations in our workload, and the range in quality and complexity of applications we
receive make it difficult to meet the legislated performance measure of 100 per cent
on‑time assessments. The APVMA accepted all recommendations in the independent
review and has worked towards implementing immediate priorities identified in the report.
Science quality and capability remains the cornerstone of our work. Participating in
international fora such as the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development
(OECD) and International Cooperation on Harmonisation of Technical Requirements for
Registration of Veterinary Medicinal products, we contributed an Australian perspective
on the regulation and authorisation of plant protection products and animal medicines,
and continued to ensure that our assessment staff are familiar with and implementing
global best practice. On the forefront of regulatory science training, we have delivered the
Accelerated Regulatory Science Training Program with the first of three cohorts graduating
with a Diploma of Government (Regulatory Science).
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Promoting the use of international assessments has resulted in more applicants making
use of international data, reducing assessment timeframes for many. In 2017–18, the
APVMA used international data and assessments from other regulators to inform the
decision on 28 product applications and 19 applications for minor use or emergency
permits. We made it easier to submit a quality application through tailored guidance
material, and defined module descriptors for assessment levels and types.
This past year we surveyed applicants and stakeholders to measure satisfaction with
APVMA communication channels and engagement practices. This study provided the
benchmark to measure our improvement, and identified areas for targeted investment
in our information and communication technology and refined service processes.

SUMMARY AND OUTLOOK

Progressing regulatory reform

We worked with the Australian Government Department of Agriculture and Water
Resources to inform legislative reforms that seek to streamline agvet chemical regulation
and improve operational efficiency. The Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Legislation
Amendment (Operational Efficiency) Bill 2017 was introduced into the Australian
Parliament on 25 October 2017. Additionally, the proposed Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals Legislation Amendment (Streamlining Regulations) Bill 2018 is being developed
and is expected to be introduced into the Australian Parliament late 2018. If passed,
the APVMA will be required to prepare for the introduction of new measures, including
reporting requirements, streamlined regulatory processes and adjustments to APVMA
governance.

Strong foundations for our Armidale regulatory centre
This year has seen significant progress in our move to Armidale. We developed the
structures, strategies and processes that will enable us to successfully transition our
world-class regulatory operations to regional Australia. More than 20 staff now work for
the APVMA in Armidale from the interim office on Beardy Street, which was expanded
in 2018 to accommodate staff choosing to relocate early, and those recruited directly
into Armidale. In a significant step forward, building work commenced on our permanent
leased premises in Armidale that will accommodate up to 150 staff by mid-2019. Funding
provided by the Australian Government for our digital strategy will further ensure a smooth
transition of our operations to Armidale by stabilising the fragmented information and
communication technology (ICT) operating environment and enabling a cloud based
services solution.
A key challenge for us over the coming year is to develop and maintain the essential
expertise and skills that support effective risk assessment and decision making. Staff
retention and transition policies developed in 2017 have helped us maintain access to the
high-level expertise that is essential to our work. With the conclusion of our staff intention
survey, e-working trial and approach to market for scientific assessment services, we chose
to retain 30–40 specialist scientists and decision makers in Canberra. Retaining the skills
and expertise of our scientists is essential to the effective operations of the APVMA, and
accommodating these staff in a Canberra satellite office will enable the APVMA to deliver
its statutory obligations under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code (Agvet Code)
while implementing the Government Policy Order to relocate.
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We continued to work with stakeholders through the Armidale Relocation Advisory
Committee, and maintained the Relocation Program Board to oversee and govern the
transition of our operations to Armidale. We established two new roles—Deputy Chief
Executive Officer, Legal, Corporate and Risk Management (Ms Lisa Croft) and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer, Business Operations and Reform (Ms Amy Fox)—to provide additional
oversight of reform processes.

Positive outlook
We took those important steps to address the financial sustainability of our regulatory
operations and reduced our operating deficit. Working with industry, our next priority is to
review cost recovery arrangements as we transition to a new business operating model.
We implemented a robust knowledge capture program, and worked closely with our staff
to ensure that the expertise and skills needed to support effective risk assessment and
decision making are retained. We will continue to implement reforms to strengthen the
APVMA, digitise our services and maintain the authority’s quality regulatory services for
the benefit of Australia’s agricultural industries, our trade and the environment.
Significant change is happening at the APVMA to bridge the gap between regulatory
service expectations and delivery, and to prepare our operations for future challenges.
We are working closely with those we regulate and stakeholders to ensure that their
interactions with us are as smooth as possible, and that the changes we implement
achieve regulatory efficiency while maintaining appropriate protections for people, animals
and the environment. While managing our extensive program of reform, we have improved
regulatory performance, increased productivity and led the world in the approval of new
products that support Australia’s agricultural productivity.
I am pleased to present this annual report for 2017–18. I would also like to congratulate
our staff on the outstanding job they are doing to support the APVMA and continue to
deliver on our obligations and objectives. We look forward to further development activity
in 2018–19, ahead of our relocation in mid-2019.
Dr Chris Parker
Chief Executive Officer
September 2018
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Significant activities and changes

•

We delivered four consecutive quarters
of improved regulatory performance. Ontime assessment of agricultural chemical
product, permit and active applications
increased from 69 per cent in 2016–17 to
73 per cent in 2017–18.

15 November 2017, the Assistant
•On
Minister for Agriculture and Water
Resources, Luke Hartsuyker, announced
the appointment of Dr Chris Parker as
APVMA Chief Executive Officer (CEO).
March 2018, the site of the APVMA
•Inpermanent
premises in Armidale,
New South Wales, was announced.
Construction of the building at 102 Taylor
Street and 91 Beardy Street started in
mid-2018, and the building is expected
to be ready for the APVMA in mid-2019.
The office will provide 2000 square
metres of office accommodation for up to
150 APVMA staff.

Performance against Strategy 1—
Transform our business to be a worldclass agvet chemicals regulator based
in regional Australia
Armidale Relocation Advisory
•The
Committee and the Relocation Program

Board oversee and govern the transition of
our operations to Armidale. To support the
move, we developed and are implementing
new Canberra staff arrangements and
a new business model, digital strategy,
knowledge management strategy, risk
framework and profile, and employee
retention policy.
appointed a Deputy CEO (DCEO)
•We
in Armidale and an additional DCEO
to oversee innovation and reform,
relocation, and continued delivery of
regulatory performance.

•

We put in place a financial sustainability
plan to return the APVMA to a more
sustainable position over the next four
years. In the 2018 Budget, the Australian
Government provided $10.1 million over
three years to fund the digital strategy.

Performance against Strategy 2—
Deliver high-quality decision making
that is timely, science-based
and proportionate to the risks
being managed

than 3300 applications were
•More
finalised this year, making 2017–18 the
most productive year in terms of output for
the authority since implementation of the
2014 legislative reforms.

SUMMARY AND OUTLOOK

APVMA 2017–18 highlights

Independent review of assessment
•The
performance outlined a program of work
to improve the timeliness and efficiency
of assessment and registration, which
will be implemented over the next three
financial years.
Accelerated Regulatory Science
•The
Training Program had three intakes and
one graduation in 2017–18.

Performance against Strategy 3—
Reduce the regulatory burden on
industry through an enhanced client
service approach

Agricultural competitiveness white
•The
paper reforms delivered tailored guidance
material for the top 20 application types,
revised module descriptors, and improved
the process for fast tracked applications,
reducing the regulatory burden on
applicants and enhancing access to
safe and effective farm chemicals.
surveyed stakeholders about their
•We
satisfaction with APVMA information
and consultative processes. The survey
results were encouraging and we will use
this feedback to continue to improve our
engagement processes.
June 2018, we developed a complaint
•Inhandling
policy and commenced a
comprehensive review of our client
service charter.
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Corporate profile and purpose
The APVMA is the independent statutory authority responsible for the assessment,
registration and regulation of agricultural and veterinary (agvet) chemicals in Australia.
Agvet chemical products must be evaluated and registered by the APVMA before they can
be legally sold, supplied or used in Australia. Registered products must not jeopardise
Australia’s trade with other countries.
More than 11 480 pesticide and veterinary medicine products are currently registered
in Australia, including products for treating crop and garden diseases and pests, and
medicines for treating agricultural and companion animals.
The APVMA takes a systematic, scientific, evidence and risk-based approach to decision
making. We evaluate the safety and performance of chemicals intended for sale in
Australia to protect the health and safety of people, animals, crops and the environment.
Our work supports primary industries—agriculture, forestry, horticulture and aquaculture—
by allowing the supply of safe and effective animal health and crop protection products.
Our work delivers benefits to Australian consumers and supports the general public by
ensuring that pet products, and household and garden pesticides are safe to use.
We license and audit veterinary manufacturers to ensure that they adhere to prescribed
standards. We monitor compliance, manage an Adverse Experience Reporting Program
(AERP) that provides early detection of unforeseen problems with registered chemicals,
and take regulatory action on registered pesticides and veterinary medicines when risks
are identified.

Responsible minister
The APVMA is a portfolio agency of the Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources,
the Hon. David Littleproud MP. During 2017–18, the Prime Minister, Malcolm Turnbull,
and the Deputy Prime Minister, Barnaby Joyce, also served as the responsible Minister for
Agriculture and Water Resources. Luke Hartsuyker and Anne Ruston served as Assistant
Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources.

Enabling legislation
The APVMA is established under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration)
Act 1992 (Administration Act). The Administration Act sets out the APVMA’s role to
administer the National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals
in partnership with state and territory governments, and the scheme’s legislation.
Functions and powers are conferred on the APVMA by the Administration Act, the
Agvet Code scheduled to the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Act 1994, the
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Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Regulations 1995 (Agvet Code Regulations),
and the agvet codes and agvet regulations of each state and participating territory.
The APVMA is a corporate Commonwealth entity under the Public Governance, Performance
and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act).

The APVMA operates under an intergovernmental agreement between the Australian
Government and all states and territories. Under this agreement, our regulatory
responsibilities extend from registration and manufacturing through to the point of sale.
The states and territories are responsible for regulating agvet chemicals after they are
sold. The APVMA does not have responsibility for monitoring how chemicals are used.
The key functions of the APVMA, which are set out in s. 7 of the Administration Act, are to:
the suitability for sale in Australia of active constituents for proposed or
•assess
existing chemical products, registered chemical products, and labels for containers

ORGANISATION OVERVIEW

Functions and powers

for chemical products

that approvals and registrations for active constituents for chemical products
•ensure
and labels for containers for chemical products comply with the Agvet Code and the
Agvet Code Regulations

information to the Australian Government and its agencies, and the states
•provide
and territories, about approved active constituents for proposed or existing chemical
products, registered chemical products and approved labels for such products, and
cooperate with the Australian Government and its agencies on matters relating to
the management and control of chemical products

and publish relevant information and statistics on approvals and registrations
•collect
granted, and permits and licences issued under the Agvet Code
the Australian Government and its agencies, and the states and participating
•with
territories, facilitate a consistent approach to the assessment and control of
agvet chemicals

information relating to chemical products and their use with overseas and
•exchange
international bodies that have similar functions to those of the APVMA
to or advise the minister on matters relating to the performance of the
•report
APVMA’s functions.
Under s. 10 of the Administration Act, the Australian Government minister responsible for
administering agricultural chemicals and veterinary medicine legislation may direct the
APVMA (in writing) concerning its functions or powers under Australian, state or territory
laws. The APVMA must comply with any such direction. No such direction was given in
2017–18.
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Executive management and structure
The APVMA management structure (Figure 1) supports effective operation, communication
and strategic understanding at all levels of the organisation.
Figure 1: APVMA organisation structure as at 30 June 2018
Chief Executive Officer

Governance and management

Deputy Chief Executive Officer,
Legal, Corporate and Risk
Management

General counsel—legal
Compliance and monitoring
Manufacturing quality and licensing
Finance
Human resources and development
Procurement
Public affairs and parliamentary processes
Knowledge management
Corporate services
Risk management
Change management

Deputy Chief Executive Officer,
Business Operations and
Reform

Innovation and implementation
Scientific assessment and chemical review,
Office of the Chief Regulatory Scientist
Registration management and evaluation
Major Projects Board
Legislative reform

Executive Director, Enabling
Technology and Site
Relocation

Digital solution design and delivery
Information and communication technology
Site relocation and facilities management

Executive Director,
Scientific Assessment
and Chemical Review

Chemical review
Chemistry and manufacture
Residues and trade
Health assessment
Environmental assessment
Efficacy assessment
Scientific standards and data guidelines

Executive Director,
Registration Management and
Evaluation

Case management and administration
Veterinary medicines
Pesticides
Minor use
Quality oversight and reporting

The APVMA Executive Leadership Team is responsible for business performance and
managing agency compliance with legislative requirements. It oversees the development
of key corporate plans and strategies, monitors and reviews organisational performance
and risk, and ensures that we meet our regulatory obligations. The executive team and
APVMA staff use their collective skills and experience to develop and consider strategic
initiatives and operational issues.

Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is the accountable authority and is
responsible for APVMA governance and management, including the
exercise of the APVMA’s powers and functions. The CEO consults
with key stakeholders to set the organisation’s vision, objectives and
strategies to meet its legislative responsibilities. The CEO approves
the APVMA’s corporate and operational plans and budgets, monitors
financial and operational performance, and oversees program
performance. The CEO leads the authority’s engagement efforts,
particularly its engagement with key international agencies.

ORGANISATION OVERVIEW

Dr Chris Parker

Ms Lisa Croft
Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Legal, Corporate and Risk Management
The Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Legal, Corporate and
Risk Management manages finance and administration,
human resources, public affairs and parliamentary processes,
procurement and partnerships, business systems, and organisational
performance analysis. Key responsibilities include overseeing the
Relocation Program Board and Audit Committee; providing timely
and accurate financial data; preparing financial plans, budgets
and strategies that enable the APVMA to deliver quality services
with the funds available; managing people services, including
recruitment and retention of staff, work health and safety, staff
wellbeing, learning and development, and workplace relations; and
managing risk management, records management, and physical
and personnel security.
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Ms Amy Fox
Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Business Operations and Reform
The Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Business Operations and
Reform provides leadership and direction to the Office of the
Chief Regulatory Scientist and to the operational and reform
functions of the agency, including scientific assessment and
chemical review, and registration management and evaluation.
This includes operational performance, regulatory, scientific
and business innovation responsibilities. Key responsibilities include
implementation of the APVMA Armidale business operating model,
and the oversight and governance of projects designed to improve
the operational efficiency and performance of the agency.

Mr Bob Smith
Executive Director, Enabling Technology and Site Relocation
The Executive Director, Enabling Technology and Site Relocation is
responsible for ensuring that the objectives of the APVMA digital
strategy are delivered to support the transition to the APVMA
Armidale business model, including overseeing the linkages to
established business systems and the transition from these systems
to new platforms. Key responsibilities include overseeing planning,
scheduling and delivery of the logistics of the relocation, and
ensuring appropriate risk management, procurement, governance
and record keeping arrangements are in place.

Dr Jason Lutze
A/g Executive Director, Scientific Assessment and Chemical Review
The Executive Director Scientific Assessment and Chemical
Review manages the APVMA’s scientific assessment and chemical
review programs. This includes the chemistry and manufacture,
health assessment and residues teams, and the assessment
coordinators for environment and efficacy. Responsibilities also
include determining whether registered chemicals continue to meet
contemporary standards, and continuously improving data guidelines
and registration and review processes.
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Mr Alan Norden
Executive Director, Registration Management and Evaluation

Mr Dwayne Currie
General Counsel, Legal and Compliance
The General Counsel, Legal and Compliance provides and oversees
the provision of legal advice, compliance and licensing activities
and support to the CEO and staff on all aspects of the APVMA’s
administrative and regulatory requirements. Responsibilities include
providing high-level and strategic legal advice, particularly on
significant issues that may have agency-wide implications.

ORGANISATION OVERVIEW

The Executive Director, Registration Management and Evaluation
manages the assessment process for agricultural chemicals and
veterinary medicines. Responsibilities include managing preapplication assistance; preliminary assessment and evaluation
of product registration, permits, export certificates and import
consents; and the AERP.

Dr Phil Reeves
Chief Regulatory Scientist
The Chief Regulatory Scientist ensures that the APVMA’s regulatory
science frameworks and standards meet appropriate national and
international standards. Through engagement with national and
international scientific and regulatory networks, the Chief Regulatory
Scientist identifies issues and trends that may affect the integrity
of these frameworks and standards, and coordinates appropriate
projects and initiatives to improve the APVMA’s scientific capability.

13
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Funding
The APVMA operates as a cost recovery agency. Registrants pay application fees
to register new products and active constituents, amend a current registration, or apply for
a permit. An annual fee is payable to renew the registration, of a product. Product owners
also pay an annual levy based on the sales of their registered products.
Levies are imposed under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy
Imposition (General) Act 1994, the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy
Imposition (Excise) Act 1994 and the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy
Imposition (Customs) Act 1994. Levies are collected under the Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemical Products (Collection of Levy) Act 1994, and the levy rates are prescribed in the
Regulations to the Act.

Financial performance
The APVMA’s total income for 2017–18 was $39.195 million. This includes:
income of $32.924 million (an increase of $2.805 million or 9 per cent
•industry
from 2016–17)
•appropriation of $6.056 million
•other revenue of $215 000.
The total industry income of $32.924 million and appropriated funding of $611 000 was
available to fund APVMA’s business-as-usual activities. Business-as-usual (operational
activities) excludes appropriation funding of $5.445 million; most of this funding was
assigned to the white paper reforms and Armidale relocation projects during 2017–18,
with the remainder ($1.087 million) to be applied to activities in 2018–19.
The net cost of APVMA services for 2017–18 was $39.908 million. The cost of APVMA’s
industry-related expenses for 2017–18 was $33.411 million, excluding expenses related
to the white paper reforms and Armidale relocation.
The deficit for 2017–18 was $880 000. The equity balance of $6.418 million is $582 000
below the APVMA’s targeted equity position of $7 million, including $1.087 million of carry
over funding for white paper reforms and Armidale relocation.

Significant noncompliance issues with finance law
No issues were reported to the Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources under
paragraph 19(1)(e) of the PGPA Act relating to noncompliance with the finance law.

14

Staff profile
Table 1 provides details of Australian Public Service (APS) employees employed at the
APVMA under the Public Service Act 1999 in 2017–18.

In 2017–18, the separation rate for ongoing staff was 36 per cent, which is an increase
from the 23 per cent separation rate in the previous year.
Table 1: APVMA staffing at 30 June 2018
Classification

Full-time
(ongoing)

Part-time
(ongoing)

Nonongoing and
casual

Total

Chief Executive Officer

0

0

1

1

Senior Executive Officer

3

0

2

5

Chief Regulatory Scientist

1

0

0

1

EL2

16

2

8

26

EL1

37

8

14

59

APS 6

44

3

7

54

APS 5

14

1

5

20

APS 4

15

1

3

19

APS 3

5

2

5

12

Graduate

3

0

0

3

138

17

45

200

Total

ORGANISATION OVERVIEW

We had 155 full-time and part-time ongoing staff at 30 June 2018. There were also
45 non-ongoing or casual staff, bringing the total number of staff to 200 (122 female,
78 male). No staff identify as being Indigenous. Staff are located in Canberra (178 staff),
Armidale (21 staff) and Perth (1 staff).

APS = Australian Public Service; EL = executive level
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Ministerial directions and government
policy orders
No ministerial directions and government policy orders (GPO) were issued during
2017–18. The APVMA continues to implement the GPO issued in 2016 under s. 22 of
the PGPA Act, which specified that corporate Commonwealth entities with agricultural
policy or regulatory responsibilities are to be located in a regional community that is
near a main campus of a regional university recognised for research and teaching in
the field of agricultural sciences.

Significant activities and changes
In November 2017, the Assistant Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources,
Luke Hartsuyker, announced the appointment of Dr Chris Parker as the APVMA CEO.
The APVMA undertook preparatory work to identify, develop and transition to a new
business operating model; defined a digital strategy to support future operations; and
negotiated the lease arrangements for a permanent leased premises in Armidale to be
constructed in time for the full relocation in mid-2019.
We continued to build our regional operations this year and expanded our interim office
in Armidale. The finalisation of key staffing policies supported early relocation of Canberra
staff to Armidale. Priority recruitment of key positions directly into Armidale has included
the appointment of a Deputy CEO.
Adopting a staged approach to the relocation has supported early trials of new work
practices, and accelerated implementation of technology that supports communication
and collaboration across multiple office sites.
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Strategic framework and reporting
The APVMA corporate strategies in 2017–18 reflect our aim to effectively manage our
operations while implementing significant change in our business. Our strategies are
contained in three key documents:
Corporate plan 2017–18 outlines three strategies to deliver core assessment
•The
and registration of agvet chemicals, while transitioning our people, property and work
practices to a new business model operating from regional Australia (Figure 2).

Operational plan 2017–18 maps these strategies to activities and operational
•The
performance measures that enable the APVMA to achieve its purpose and
regulatory functions.

Regulator performance framework 2017–18 provides an additional lens through
•The
which the APVMA can assess regulatory performance against the Australian
Government Deregulation Agenda. A self-assessment report against this framework
is published each year on the APVMA website.
Figure 2: APVMA corporate strategies

our strategies
Our purpose is underpinned by three strategies

2

1

science-based and
proportionate to the
risks being managed

chemicals regulator
based in regional
Australia

Reduce the
regulatory burden
on industry through
an enhanced client
service approach

5

20

decision-making
that is timely,

Transform our
business to be a
world-class agvet

3

Deliver high-quality

Measuring our performance
Our corporate strategies are interconnected. Our key performance indicators are therefore
considered in a holistic way, focusing on four themes of legislative compliance, risk-based
intervention, quality decision-making and stakeholder engagement. Successful delivery in
one strategic area will reinforce and build success in all.
The relationship between our Portfolio Budget Statements, corporate plan and annual
performance statement is shown in Figure 3.
Figure 3: Relationship between APVMA Portfolio Budget Statements, corporate plan and
annual performance statement

Portfolio Budget Statements
Outcome 1. Protection of the health and safety of
people, animals, the environment, and agricultural
and livestock industries through regulation
of pesticides and veterinary medicines

Relocation to Armidale

Strategy 1

Strategy 3

Transform our business
to be a world-class agvet
chemicals regulator based
in regional Australia

Reduce the regulatory
burden on industry through
an enhanced client
service approach

Strategy 2

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Government
Policy Order

Deliver high-quality
decision-making that is
timely, science-based and
proportionate to the
risks being managed

Corporate plan
strategies

Corporate and
operational performance
measures: pages 23–34

Corporate and
operational performance
measures: pages 35–45

Corporate and
operational performance
measures: pages 46–56

Annual performance statement
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Statement of preparation by the Chief
Executive Officer
I, as the accountable authority of the APVMA, present the 2017–18 annual performance
statement of the APVMA, as required under paragraph s. 39(1)(a) of the PGPA Act. In my
opinion, these annual performance statements are based on properly maintained records,
accurately reflect the performance of the entity and comply with s. 39(2) of the PGPA Act.
Dr Chris Parker
Chief Executive Officer
14 September 2018

Results against performance criterion
This chapter provides the results of our performance against:

•the APVMA Portfolio Budget Statement (PBS)
•measures in the Corporate plan 2017–18
•12 focus areas listed in the Operational plan 2017–18.
Each focus area has at least one metric, as outlined in the APVMA Operational plan
2017–18. Results are presented in tables at the metric level, with one table for each
performance strategy. A summary and explanation of performance against the strategy
is provided at the beginning of each strategy.

Variation from the APVMA Portfolio Budget Statement
There have been no variations from the PBS in 2017–18.
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Strategy 1
Transform our business to be a world-class agvet
chemicals regulator based in regional Australia
Summary of performance
To achieve Strategy 1, we aim to:

We made significant progress this year on developing and implementing the new business
model to support our relocation to Armidale. Construction of the permanent Armidale
offices commenced and is expected to be completed mid-2019.
As part of the new business model, we examined our needs for digital technology
and human resources. We developed a digital strategy, and the Australian Government
allocated $10.1 million over three years to deliver the enabling technology program of
work. The APVMA employee retention policy provided incentives for our existing workforce
to remain with the authority during the transition to Armidale. We also surveyed staff about
their relocation plans to better understand our future staffing supply and profile. Access
to regulatory science expertise was identified as a key risk so we explored recruitment
efforts and teleworking arrangements to address this. Failure to fully mitigate this risk has
required further measures, and the APVMA will retain a modest unit of specialist scientific
and decision-making staff in a Canberra satellite office.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

implement, embed and optimise the application of the new APVMA business
•define,
model based in Armidale
key changes across people (capability), process (workforce and workplace)
•implement
and technology (ICT)
and implement business reform initiatives, including the Agricultural
•define
competitiveness white paper reform and agvet legislative reform
•improve stakeholder engagement
•create a sustainable and equitable funding base for the organisation.

To further support staff, we developed a knowledge management strategy and framework.
Changes to administrative process and workflows resulting from business improvements
and projects undertaken through the Agricultural competitiveness white paper were
documented to ensure consistent practice into the future as our staff and work change.
Engagement with industry and relevant international groups continued in an effort to share
knowledge and ensure our information and processes continue to be world-class. This year
we surveyed stakeholders to understand their satisfaction with APVMA information and
consultative processes. The survey results were positive and we will use this feedback
to continue to improve our engagement processes.
We have put in place a financial sustainability plan to return the APVMA to a sustainable
position. We reviewed and updated our risk management framework and profile, in light
of relocation activities to ensure that our risk management approach takes this important
change into account.
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Explanation of performance
The APVMA continues to make good progress towards our relocation goals. We achieved
this by developing sound policies and strategies to target key areas, using expert staff
skills and knowledge coupled with external input and consultancy services.

Focus area: Define, implement, embed and optimise the application
of the new APVMA business model based in Armidale
Key activity: Define and commence implementation of the APVMA business model
based in Armidale, by October 2017
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measures

Published by
October 2017

Operational
plan 2017–18

Progress made
against the APVMA
Armidale Relocation
Strategy and program
implementation

Corporate plan
2017–18

Following extensive consultation with staff
and stakeholders, the Armidale business
model was finalised and published on our
website in December 2017. The model
informed work on potential teleworking
arrangements, the digital strategy and
priority recruitment for Armidale.
We expanded our interim office in Armidale
and appointed the Armidale Deputy CEO
(DCEO). Executive responsibilities were
also expanded to include another DCEO
position; together the DCEOs oversee
reforms, relocation and improved regulatory
performance. We engaged external legal
services and consolidated public affairs
and parliamentary business teams.
The APVMA Relocation Program Board
governed relocation activities. The program
of work was managed by the APVMA’s
relocation operations team, across three
streams: people, place and digital. The
Relocation Program Board reported directly
to the CEO and the APVMA’s executive. The
Armidale Relocation Advisory Committee also
provided strategic advice to the executive on
major aspects of the relocation.
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Key activity: Maintain operations of the Armidale interim office while planning and
designing the Armidale permanent premises
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Armidale office
management and
staffing managed in
line with approved
budget and policies

Operational
plan 2017–18

Relevant policies governing the Armidale
office and workplace were in place during
the year. All other general APVMA policies
are in effect.

We achieved a clear delineation between
the APVMA ‘business as usual’ activities
and those relating to the Armidale relocation
through appropriate delegations.
Progress made
against the APVMA
Armidale Relocation
Strategy and Program
Implementation

Corporate plan
2017–18

Stirloch Group Pty Ltd was selected to
construct and fit out our permanent office in
Armidale. The building site at 102 Taylor and
91 Beardy St was unveiled in March 2018
by the Minister for Agriculture and Water
Resources, the Hon. David Littleproud MP.
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The approved budget was controlled by
APVMA line managers and reported in
the normal course of business. All major
expenditure proposals were reviewed by the
Chief Finance Officer, and separate monthly
relocation program reporting against the
agreed budget was provided to the
APVMA executive.

Site clearance and excavation commenced
in April 2018 and development remains
on track, with the building to be delivered
by mid-2019. A design working group, in
consultation with APVMA staff, provided input
on workstation design and requirements.
Relocation activities were reported and
monitored by the Relocation Program
Board throughout 2017–18.
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Key activity: Develop and implement the recruitment strategy and workforce plan
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Recruitment strategy
and workforce plan
milestones met

Operational
plan 2017–18

Progress made
against the APVMA
Armidale Relocation
Strategy and Program
Implementation

Corporate plan
2017–18

Following release of the APVMA’s new
business operating model in December
2017, an operational resourcing structure
was established detailing the number and
classification of employees by function
required for the authority to fulfil its statutory
obligations under the Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals Code.
We increased our presence in Armidale
through priority recruitment action, and
reduced our Canberra presence through
employee separations.

Improved workforce
stability and reduced
staff separation

APVMA allocated staffing levels remained
relatively stable throughout the year, with
targeted recruitment keeping pace with
separations.
In February 2018, we surveyed staff
intentions to relocate. The results of this
survey informed the development of our
priority recruitment schedule to ensure
business continuity.

Focus area: Implement key changes across people (capability),
process (workforce and workplace) and technology (ICT)
Key activity: Define and implement a people strategy to support the new APVMA
business model based in Armidale
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Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

People strategies are
in place by October
2017 and being
implemented

Operational
plan 2017–18

In October 2017, the transitional People
strategy 2017–18 was finalised and
implementation commenced.

Improved workforce
stability and reduced
staff separation

Corporate plan
2017–18

See also Key activity: Develop and implement
the recruitment strategy and workforce plan.

Key activity: Implement priority activities within the ICT Strategic Plan and Digital
Strategy to support business modernisation, including the digitisation of files
Source

Result against performance measure

Progress against ICT
Strategic Plan and
Digital Strategy

Operational
plan 2017–18

Progress made
against the APVMA
Armidale Relocation
Strategy and Program
Implementation

Corporate plan
2017–18

The ICT team met the agreed goals of the
ICT Strategic Plan during 2017–18: improving
service delivery, improving stability, improving
collaboration with business and building a
stronger ICT team.
We improved system stability through
increased performance monitoring to
allow reactive and pre-emptive intervention.
Collaboration improved across the authority
through the deployment of Skype for
Business messaging and video conferencing
available to all staff. This enabled better
working across multiple sites, whether in
the office or remote.
The APVMA digital strategy was published
in May 2018, delivering on a key milestone
of the preparatory phase outlined in the
APVMA in Armidale Relocation Strategy. In
May the Australian Government announced
the allocation of $10.1 million over three
years to fund the digital strategy. Since May,
the ICT teams worked towards achieving
relocation strategy objectives through
development of the Enabling technology
program.
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Performance measure

27
3

APVMA ANNUAL REPORT 2017–18

Focus area: Define and implement business reform initiatives, including
the Agricultural competitiveness white paper reforms and agvet
legislative reform
Key activity: Review organisational capability and capacity requirements
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Review completed

Operational
plan 2017–18

See Key activity: Develop and implement the
recruitment strategy and workforce plan.

Key activity: Implement the Enterprise Risk Framework
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Risk governance
in place and risk
reporting mechanisms
are maintained

Operational
plan 2017–18

Delivery against
project milestones and
benefits realisation
of Agricultural
competitiveness white
paper reforms

Corporate plan
2017–18

Our risk management framework was revised
and implemented as a key deliverable in
the APVMA’s implementation of the 2014
agvet chemical legislative reforms. The
framework helped staff to identify and
manage enterprise risk. We developed
operational and relocation risk registers, and
improved our management of project risk by
reporting monthly to the executive. A Major
Projects Board was established to monitor
implementation and progress of APVMA
business reforms and white paper projects.

Risk management
frameworks and
policies are in place
and regularly assessed

Regulator
performance
framework—3.1

The APVMA executive reviewed and
updated our strategic risks in light of
relocation activities.
In December 2017, we engaged a consultant
to undertake assurance mapping for the
agency. The work included analysis of the
extent to which assurance activities are in
place to address significant risks affecting
our key operations.
Following the appointment of the APVMA
CEO in November 2017, we reviewed the
authority’s risk appetite and management
practices. In May 2018, the executive
endorsed the revised risk management
approach and supporting documentation,
including our risk governance and
accountability matrix. These documents
were agreed by the APVMA Audit Committee.
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Key activity: Implement the knowledge management strategy
Source

Result against performance measure

Knowledge
management strategy
milestones met

Operational
plan 2017–18

Delivery against
project milestones and
benefits realisation
of Agricultural
competitiveness white
paper reforms

Corporate plan
2017–18

This year we conducted activities to
understand and improve our knowledge
environment to ensure that we are
maintaining the knowledge that staff require
to do their jobs. Building on the work
commissioned with a consultant in 2016–17
to develop our knowledge management
strategy, we launched a knowledge
management project in 2018 to develop
critical knowledge products, and design
and implement a knowledge management
framework to support the needs of the
organisation into the future.
By 30 June 2018, over 1000 pieces of
instructional material had been reviewed,
updated or developed to document key
APVMA work practices. Changes to
administrative process and workflows
resulting from business improvements
and white paper projects were made and
documented to ensure consistent practice
into the future as our staff and work change.
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Performance measure

Reports on progress of the APVMA knowledge
management projects were provided monthly
to the Relocation Program Board.
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Key activity: Contribute to the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources agvet
chemical legislative reform
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Contributions are
made

Operational
plan 2017–18

Feedback is
provided to inform
the development
or amendment of
regulatory frameworks

Regulator
performance
framework—6.2

APVMA continues to work cooperatively
with the Australian Government
Department of Agriculture and Water
Resources to advance reform measures,
provide advice on implications of various
measures and contribute to stakeholder
engagement activities.
The Operational Efficiency Bill was introduced
to parliament on 25 October 2017, and we
progressed planning in 2018 to prepare
for implementation.
The APVMA also provided feedback to
the Department of Agriculture and Water
Resources on an exposure draft of
the Streamlining Regulation Bill.
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Focus area: Improve stakeholder engagement
Key activity: Improve the delivery of industry information sessions
Source

Result against performance measure

Stakeholder
feedback
from APVMA
information
sessions is
largely positive
and suggested
improvements
are acted on for
future events

Operational
plan 2017–18

Since 2015, the APVMA has conducted industry
information sessions to facilitate engagement with
clients and improve communication with stakeholders.

Stakeholder
engagement and
public confidence
measured
through the
breadth and
number of
industry
engagement
activities
delivered

Corporate
plan 2017–18

Demonstrated
understanding
of the operating
environment of
regulated entities

Regulator
performance
framework—
1.1, 2.3

To address feedback from the 2016 industry
information sessions, in 2017 the APVMA:
more time for informal networking
•allocated
and improved access to APVMA staff during
break‑out times

a question-and-answer function on
•implemented
social media, and scheduled panel discussions
and question time within the program

training and support for presenters
•provided
to improve presentation quality.
In September 2017, 157 regulated clients and
stakeholders attended the APVMA information
sessions held in Canberra. Feedback on the sessions
was largely positive, with 81% of surveyed participants
agreeing that the event was worthwhile and 95%
agreeing that the quality of the APVMA speakers
was very good or good.
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Performance
measure

Planning commenced for APVMA engagement and
events in 2018 that will seek to address feedback
collected from the 2017 event and the 2018 client
and stakeholder survey.
The APVMA consults on major changes to operational
policy, guidelines and systems before they are
finalised. This year:
were over 3100 unique visits to the public
•there
consultation pages of the APVMA website, indicating
the strong visibility and accessibility of APVMA
consultations

consulted publicly on 49 regulatory decisions
•we
and proposed changes to operational policy and
development of guidelines

held three industry workshops in July 2017,
•we
November 2017 and March 2018, to user test
improvements to tailored guidance material and
module descriptors.
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Key activity: Survey clients and stakeholders to inform development of the APVMA
stakeholder engagement strategy
Performance
measure

Source

Result against performance measure

An APVMA
stakeholder survey
is deployed

Operational
plan 2017–18

Stakeholder
engagement and
public confidence
measured
by surveying
stakeholders to
understand the level
of satisfaction with
APVMA information
and consultative
processes

Corporate
plan 2017–18

In March we conducted a client and stakeholder
survey to measure satisfaction with APVMA
communication channels and engagement;
380 people responded to the survey, which
has provided a benchmark for evaluating
future improvements.

Level of stakeholder
engagement in
implementing
regulatory frameworks

Regulator
performance
framework—
6.1

Satisfaction with APVMA’s consultative
process was largely positive. More than twothirds of respondents who had participated
in stakeholder consultation (e.g. meetings,
stakeholder forums, calls for submission)
in the 12 months before the survey were
either satisfied (48%) or very satisfied (19%)
with APVMA’s efforts to engage and consult
on regulatory and operational changes and
amendments.
Confidence in APVMA decision-making was
strong, with 68% of respondents agreeing that
our decisions are made in accordance with
the relevant legislative framework, and 62%
agreeing decisions are underpinned by science.
Areas where respondents thought performance
could be improved included timeliness and
transparency of decisions, and appropriate
understanding and management of risk.
While we are very active in the international
regulatory arena, the survey also revealed low
levels of recognition of the APVMA’s reputation
as a world-leader in agvet chemical regulation:
33% of respondents agreed that the APVMA
keeps pace with international regulators.
See also Key activity: Continue engaging and
harmonising with relevant international forums,
including facilitating APVMA attendance at forums
such as OECD and VICH.
The survey provided insights into the
preferred methods of communication and
consultation for clients and stakeholders. These
preferences were considered as part of the
early development of the APVMA stakeholder
engagement strategy.
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Key activity: Continue engaging and harmonising with relevant international forums,
including facilitating APVMA attendance at forums such as the OECD and VICH
Source

Result against performance measure

APVMA attendance at
least five international
forums

Operational
plan 2017–18

Stakeholder
engagement and
public confidence
measured by surveying
stakeholders to
understand the level
of satisfaction with
APVMA information
and consultative
processes

Corporate plan
2017–18

Our regulatory scientists participate in
many international forums. This involvement
ensures that our assessment staff are
familiar with and implementing global best
practice in the Australian context. APVMA
contributed to 16 international forums in
2017–18 (see Table 7, page 68).

Demonstrated
understanding of the
operating environment
of regulated entities

Regulator
performance
framework—1.1

The APVMA also hosted delegations
from Brazil in October 2017 and South
Korea in June 2018, presenting on our
communication, technology and approach
to process improvement.
See also Key activity: Survey clients and
stakeholders to inform development of the
APVMA stakeholder engagement strategy.
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Performance measure
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Focus area: Create a sustainable and equitable funding base for
the organisation
Key activity: Investigate the impact of business improvements and lower regulatory
approaches on the agency’s cost base and model
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Financial modelling
of business
improvements
completed and can
inform the agency’s
cost base

Operational
plan 2017–18

The PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Stage 1
Revenue Modelling—Fees Analysis review
of APVMA cost recovery arrangements is
complete. The PwC review made a number
of recommendations, including improving the
current cost recovery practices and refining
the modelling to assist with the development
of an agreed future fee structure.
These recommendations are informing
the development of a Cost Recovery
Implementation Statement, which will be
developed and implemented in 2019–20.

Responsible financial
management of agency
operations, including
maintenance of equity
reserve targets

Corporate plan
2017–18

At 30 June 2018, the APVMA equity reserve
was $6.418 million.
In 2017–18, the CEO approved a financial
sustainability plan outlining measures to
return the APVMA to the prescribed equity
reserve balance over the next four years.
This includes the development and
implementation of a renewed Cost Recovery
Implementation Statement in 2019–20
(see above) and interim measures to retain
positive cash flows.

Strategy 2
Deliver high-quality decision-making that is timely,
science-based and proportionate to the risks
being managed
Summary of performance
To achieve Strategy 2, we aim to:

This year, the APVMA achieved overall performance rates of 73 per cent within timeframe,
including 70 per cent for product registration (pesticides 63 per cent, veterinary medicines
81 per cent), 86 per cent for active approvals and 67 per cent for permits. More details
are given in Table 2.
Table 2: Activities related to APVMA regulatory decisions
Types of regulatory decisions

Pre-application assistance

Commenced

Finalised/
issued

In
progress

146

143

28

1151

1325

496

Product registration—veterinary medicines

864

965

288

Actives

729

747

357

Permits

483

545

165

Items 8L, 8M, 8P

658

639

36

10

18

5

Notifiable variations

762

747

15

Import consents

740

779

14

Certificates of export

335

309

6

Product registration—pesticides

Item 25
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a strong focus on delivering APVMA’s core regulatory responsibilities, while
•maintain
seeking to achieve improvements around application processing efficiency
•invest in the decision-making capability of staff
•continue engaging and harmonising with relevant international forums.
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We invested in staff development and networks to support our work. This includes
conducting the Accelerated Regulatory Science Training Program to develop regulatory
science staff, with three intakes and one graduation to date. We helped shape the
curriculum for a Graduate Certificate and Graduate Diploma in Science (Regulatory
Science) at the University of New England (UNE), and established networks with UNE
and CSIRO in Armidale. We drew on external expertise to strengthen and streamline our
work; international assessments contributed to the assessment of 28 products this year.

Explanation of performance
The APVMA has continued to improve core business processes and sought to align
improvements with the new business operating model to deliver efficiencies for staff
and regulated industry in 2018.
An independent review of assessment performance considered internal and external
influences, and confirmed that fluctuations and volatility in the assessment workload and
the range in quality and complexity of applications received make it difficult to meet the
legislated performance measure of 100 per cent on-time assessments. It also confirmed
that multiple factors contribute to delays in assessment and outlined a plan for reform
that will be implemented in forward years.
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Focus area: Maintain a strong focus on delivering APVMA’s core
regulatory responsibilities, while seeking to achieve improvements
around application processing efficiency
Key activity: Define and implement the regulatory science projects to inform regulatory
frameworks
Source

Result against performance measure

Projects
delivered
in line with
project
milestones

Operational
plan
2017–18

We delivered a program of regulatory science projects
aimed at improving the efficiency of finalising product
registration applications:
project aims to elicit higher-quality submissions
•one
from product registration applicants. The APVMA
also participates in international workshare
arrangements with overseas regulatory agencies.
Workshare offers a highly efficient program for
product registrants to register their products in
several countries concurrently, and has been well
received by stakeholders

and documenting an approach to regulating
•developing
agvet chemical products of emerging technologies.
A draft report titled Managing the registration of
emerging technology agvet products was tabled at the
Science Quality Committee meeting on 7 February
2018 and comments returned in April. The comments
indicated that a major revision of the draft report
was required, and this was in progress at the end of
the financial year

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Performance
measure

and publishing a report on antimicrobial
•consulting
resistance. The Australian Government Department

of Health, and the Department of Agriculture and
Water Resources were consulted, and the report,
titled Antibiotic resistance in animals: a report for the
APVMA, was published to apvma.gov.au in August
2017. The author of the report, Emeritus Professor
Mary Barton, subsequently presented a seminar on
antimicrobial resistance in animals to staff from the
APVMA and other Australian Government departments
and agencies in February 2018.
We have continued to focus on improving our science
quality. The Science Quality Committee considered and
addressed issues related to the quality of scientific
processes and regulatory outputs, and offered guidance
to scientific evaluators.
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Performance
measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Projects
delivered
in line with
project
milestones

Operational
plan
2017–18

(Continued from previous page)
We are looking to advancements in science that may
improve the ability of tests, models and assessment
methods to better predict product safety issues. We
completed several projects that directly improved
product assessment methodology, including:
methodology to assess risks posed by
•aimported
live microorganisms intended for use
in veterinary vaccines

to evaluate software models used
•atoframework
calculate components of risk associated with
agvet chemical products

system to analyse risks to insect pollinators
•afrom
pesticide use.
In staff development and outreach, we:
shape the UNE Regulatory Science curriculum.
•helped
In 2017, UNE offered a Graduate Certificate and a
Graduate Diploma in Science (Regulatory Science)
for the first time. The curriculum was reviewed at the
UNE Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Regulatory
Science Advisory Board on 21 July 2017. The APVMA
Chief Regulatory Scientist serves on this board and
recommended the inclusion of core competencies
in the course that would be relevant to the needs
of the APVMA

networks in Armidale. We started to
•established
build long-term partnerships with UNE and other

science research bodies. For example, we discussed
partnership arrangements with the CSIRO Division
of Agriculture and Food and with a private science
research body in Armidale

an enHealth meeting and workshop. The
•conducted
Chief Regulatory Scientist presented on the APVMA’s
Accelerated Regulatory Science Training Program to
a workshop hosted jointly by the Australasian College
of Toxicology and Risk Assessment and enHealth in
Melbourne on 10 November 2017

a new section of our website on
•launched
‘Our science’, which provides information on our

regulatory framework, projects and collaborations.
The section is rated as one of the 50 most popular
APVMA pages online
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Performance
measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Projects
delivered
in line with
project
milestones

Operational
plan
2017–18

(Continued from previous page)
a science seminar series with monthly
•established
presentations, including:
–– Emeritus Professor Mary Barton—Antimicrobial
resistance in animals
–– Mr Mark Jenner—Human occupational exposure
modelling: challenges and future direction

–– Dr Joe Smith—Reflections on what makes an
effective regulator
–– Professor David Dorman—Application of systematic
review methods in an overall strategy for evaluating
low-dose toxicity from endocrine active chemicals.
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–– Dr Les Davies—Neonicotinoids and the health
of honey bees in Australia
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Performance against legislative timeframes
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Performance against
legislative timeframes:

Corporate plan
2017–18

In 2017–18:

70% of
•complete
regulatory decisions

within the statutory timeframe

of emergency permits were
•64%
completed within 14 days, and 88%

within the statutory
timeframes

50% of
•finalise
Emergency Permits

were completed within 28 days

of chemical reconsiderations
•15%
were finalised in accordance with the

within 14 days and
90% finalised in
28 days

program schedule.

of chemical
•100%
reconsiderations

Targeted effort reduced the number of
overdue applications during the first half
of the year, particularly within the pesticides
stream, by realigning and rescheduling
resources. We improved the monitoring and
tracking of applications through the internal
application management system, and
streamlined the documentation of decisions.

are finalised in
accordance with the
program schedule
and meet legislative
timeframes
Efficient and effective
APVMA business
processes

of regulatory decisions for products,
•73%
permits, and actives were completed

Regulator
performance
framework—1.3

The chemical reconsideration of Polihexanide
and Macrolide antibiotics were finalised this
year. Details of these reviews, including the
final decisions can be found at
apvma.gov.au/node/12691 and
apvma.gov.au/node/12581 respectively.
Substantial progress was made towards
completing a further five reconsiderations,
which are expected to progress to public
consultation in 2018–19.
In 2017–18, the Office of the Chief
Regulatory Scientist was asked to review
three applications and these reviews
were completed.
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Key activity: Scrutinise options around processing timeframes to identify improvements
through an independent review
Source

Result against performance measure

An independent review
of agency timeframe
performance
completed

Operational
plan 2017–18

In August 2017, the CEO commissioned
the Independent review of assessment
performance. The report was released
in January 2018. We accepted all report
recommendations, which will be implemented
through a coordinated program of reform over
the forward three years.
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Performance measure
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Focus area: Invest in the decision-making capability of staff
Key activity: Maintain and energise the Adverse Experience Reporting Program (AERP)
to better inform current and future decisions
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

AERP data entry and
analysis outputs are
achieved

Operational
plan 2017–18

In 2017–18, the AERP team received more
than 5000* adverse experience reports and
classified 2841.
Classification
Mandatory
(non-serious)

Agricultural Veterinary

Total

2

1430

1432

Mandatory
(serious)

49

1244

1293

Voluntary

20

96

116

Total

71

2770

2841

*one adverse incident may be reported multiple
times (eg the vet, consumer and registrant may all
report the same incident)

Adjustments
to registration
requirements and
the cancellation of
registration for safety
reasons flowing from
the AERP
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Corporate plan
2017–18

In addition to classifying and entering
the data, we analyse the data and inform
relevant APVMA areas of any findings
warranting regulatory action. As a result of
this analysis, regulatory action was taken on
three product families to ensure that their
ongoing use remains safe and efficacious.
No safety issues were identified to warrant
the cancellation of any product registrations.
AERP data supported 10 applications or
registrant-initiated label changes, and data
was provided to inform four compliance
issues. AERP data was used to inform
four chemical review processes (secondgeneration anticoagulant rodenticides,
macrolides, chlorpyrifos and methiocarb).

Key activities: Deliver the APVMA Accelerated Regulatory Science Training Program—
Diploma of Government (Regulatory Science)
Source

Result against performance measure

Number of APVMA
regulatory scientists
undertaking the
accelerated training

Operational
plan 2017–18

We are conducting the Accelerated
Regulatory Science Training Program to
develop the skills of regulatory science
staff. The program runs over 10 months and
successful participants receive a Diploma
of Government in regulatory science. Three
intakes progressed study in 2017–18,
including two in Canberra and one in
Armidale. A total of 46 staff undertook the
training. The first intake of 12 participants
graduated on 5 June 2018 and the second
and third intakes are expected to complete
the program in August 2018.

A year-on-year reduction
in the number of
decisions that are
referred to external
bodies (i.e. court,
the Ombudsman, the
Administrative Appeals
Tribunal [AAT]) for
reviews that result
in a reversal of the
original decision

Corporate plan
2017–18

In 2016–17, four matters with the AAT were
remitted to the APVMA for reconsideration.
In 2017–18, one decision was set aside
by the AAT. This decision was set aside in
line with an agreement between the APVMA
and the appellant. Under that agreement,
the appellant was required to amend their
application and the revised application was
considered by the APVMA in accordance
with the requirements of the Agvet Code.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Performance measure

Focus area: Continue engaging and harmonising with relevant
international forums
Key activity: Implement and complete the Agricultural competitiveness white paper
reforms to deliver improved business processes and quality decision-making through
internal assessments and guidelines, and compliance and monitoring
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Delivery against
project milestones
and realising the
benefits of Agricultural
competitiveness white
paper reforms

Operational
plan 2017–18

Closure reports for white paper reform
projects indicate that six of the nine projects
were largely delivered, with the remaining ICT
development and implementation due to be
completed in 2018–19.
See Key activity: Finalise and embed business
improvements in response to the 2017 ANAO
report on the APVMA’s implementation of
agvet chemical reforms (2014).
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Measuring the impact of reduced regulatory approaches and alignment with risk
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

The impact of reducing
regulatory approaches
and aligning these
approaches with
risk, in particular:

Corporate plan
2017–18

In 2017–18, international assessments
contributed to the assessment of
28 products. They also supported residues
assessment of 19 minor use or emergency
permits. International assessment web
pages were updated, and consultations on
the approach to timeframes with Animal
Medicines Australia, CropLife Australia and
the Veterinary Manufacturers and Distributors
Association have been completed.

number of
•the
applications using
data assessment,
standards and
decisions from
comparable
regulators

The client and stakeholder survey
conducted in March found that of the 365
respondents who had accessed the APVMA
website in the 12 months preceding the
survey, 45% had used the data guidelines,
and 12% had viewed guidance on
international assessments.

awareness
•industry
and rate of adoption
of data guidelines,
standards and
international
assessments
used to reduce
effort to register
agvet chemicals

Initial consultations on veterinary active
guidelines were undertaken in November
2017 and comments from industry and
stakeholders were considered before
wider consultation was undertaken during
February and March 2018. The chemistry
risk assessment manual was circulated
to industry groups for comment, which
were considered before wider consultation
between April and May 2018.

number of
•the
risk management
frameworks and
policies in place
and regularly
reassessed

lower
•effective
regulatory effort

when applied to
lower regulatory risk
International data
guidelines, standards
and assessments
adopted to reduce
effort to register agvet
chemicals
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Regulator
performance
framework—1.2

Key activity: Continue to encourage the use of international assessments
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Opportunities to use
data assessment,
standards and
decisions from
comparable
regulators are broadly
communicated and
client interest is
measured through
hits on the web and
client enquiries

Operational
plan 2017–18

APVMA has promoted the use of international
assessments to clients and stakeholders
through various channels, including:

International data
guidelines, standards
and assessments
adopted to reduce
effort to register agvet
chemicals

Regulator
performance
framework—1.2

•using Twitter to reach 1443 followers
a presentation to 157 attendees
•giving
at the 2017 APVMA Industry Information
a feature banner to the website to
•adding
direct visitors to detailed guidance
regulatory update stories to
•providing
3517 subscribers.
The web page for guidance on the use
of international assessments received
860 unique visits in 2017–18.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
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Strategy 3
Reduce the regulatory burden on industry through
an enhanced client service approach
Summary of performance
To achieve Strategy 3, we aim to:
consistency of registration, compliance and licensing activities
•ensure
with regulatory risk
implement and streamline business reform initiatives in the APVMA
•define,
(Agricultural competitive white paper reform and internal process reforms)
•implement legislative reform
•stabilise and build on the existing user experience.
In the 2016 Federal Budget, the APVMA was allocated $7.3 million over four years to
implement the APVMA’s components of the Agricultural competitiveness white paper
reforms. The aims of the white paper reforms are to:

•lower regulatory approaches to registration—to reduce regulatory effort
•enhance the user experiences—to improve client and stakeholder interactions
•implement more efficient business systems—to improve efficiency and transparency.
We implemented a range of projects and activities under the white paper reforms. For
example, we developed tailored guidance material for the top 20 common application
types, including fast track applications, revised the module descriptors and developed risk
assessment manuals to improve the quality of applications. We provided pre-application
assistance to clarify the nature and levels of assessment required before clients submit
an application—a program that has been popular.
Compliance activities continued to focus on monitoring and education, and were effective
in addressing noncompliance of both manufacturers and retailers.

Explanation of performance
The Independent review of assessment performance recommended that we:
better use of legislative instruments by modifying the training and guidance
•make
provided to staff
•explore earlier rejections of poor-quality applications
•improve the management of backlogs through resource management and scheduling
•assess opportunities to delegate sign-off of decisions to assessment teams.
By implementing these recommendations, together with white paper reforms, knowledge
management, legislative reform and the digital strategy, we are moving to significantly
improve our client services and reduce the burden on industry. These changes are
supported by strengthened governance processes and leadership.
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Focus area: Ensure consistency of registration, compliance and
licensing activities with regulatory risk
Key activity: Improve the quality and consistency of decisions through effective
engagement with internal advisory committees and concurrent incremental improvement
of internal forms and templates
Source

Result against performance measure

Internal advisory
committees report
improvements in
the consistency of
APVMA decisions

Operational
plan 2017–18

The Science Quality Committee met
seven times. It reviewed OECD guidelines
for adoption by the APVMA and provided
scientific advice to evaluators to improve
the quality and consistency of regulatory
decisions. The Registration Quality
Committee finalised issues pertaining
to generic products and revised internal
forms and templates for generic
product applications.
See also the Governance section.

Key activity: Investigate the applications of an improved data analytics capability in
the Adverse Experience Reporting Program (AERP) that can better inform current and
future decisions
Performance measure
Number of business
decisions informed and
corrective actions taken
as a result of improved
AERP data and analysis

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Performance measure

Result against performance measure
Operational
plan 2017–18

See Key activity: Maintain and energise the
Adverse Experience Reporting Program (AERP)
to better inform current and future decisions.

Key activity: Continue efficacy and contestability projects
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Projects delivered

Operational plan
2017–18

Lower regulatory effort
is applied to activities
of lower regulatory risk

Regulator
performance
framework—3.2

The efficacy contestability pilot closed for
submission of applications on 30 June 2018.
A total of 30 applications were received
for inclusion in the pilot. Of those, 13
have been finalised and the remainder
are being evaluated.
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Key activity: Develop and implement the APVMA compliance plan
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Compliance activities
are delivered

Operational plan
2017–18

The Compliance and Monitoring team:

led to:
–– one compulsory recall
–– six formal warnings
–– 17 infringement notices issued
(totalling $153 500)
Risk management
frameworks and
policies are in place
and regularly assessed
Compliance and
enforcement strategies
are consistent
with agreed risk
management policies

Regulator
performance
framework—3.1,
3.3, 4.1, 4.2,
4.3

–– one enforceable undertaking
–– two investigation warrants

in Interpol-led Operation
•participated
Pangea X
containment screening of
•conducted
48 agricultural chemical products, all
with the Australian Border
•collaborated
Force to monitor chemical imports
into Australia

audits of adherence
•conducted
to conditions of 10 permits and
15 agricultural chemical products; two
were found to be noncompliant and action
has been taken by the permit holders
to remedy this noncompliance

Compliance activities
respond to business
needs and regulated
entities where relevant

education campaigns
•delivered
targeting the supply of unregistered

Information requested
from regulated entities
is necessary and
acted upon

Targeted reductions
in noncompliant
behaviour as a result
of implementing
the APVMA
compliance plan

–– one notice to produce

of which were found to be compliant

Monitoring and
enforcement strategies
allow for a range of
regulatory responses
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230 new allegations of
•investigated
noncompliance and finalised 220 that

insect repellents, import and supply of
unregistered veterinary chemical products
for use in the greyhound racing industry,
and import of unregistered chemical
products through customs brokers.
Operational plan
2017–18

The APVMA conducted targeted monitoring of
unregulated products in discount retail and
rural supply stores. More than 55 retailers
throughout Australia were inspected, with
15 unregistered agvet chemical products
identified for sale. These products were
removed from stores and tracked back to
distributors, who agreed to cease distribution
of the products.

Key activity: Administer requirements for veterinary manufacturing audits and licensing
Source

Result against performance measure

Audits completed and
licensing managed as
per the schedule, with
longer audit intervals
established for
compliant operators

Operational
plan 2017–18

82% of audits were completed within
schedule and longer audit intervals are being
applied to compliant operators.

Compliance and
enforcement strategies
are consistent
with agreed risk
management policies

Regulator
performance
framework—3.2

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Performance measure
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Focus area: Define, implement and streamline the business reform
initiatives in the APVMA
Key activity: Implement and complete Agricultural competitiveness white paper reforms
to enhance the user experience, including improving registration pathways, transforming
the user experience, delivering tailored guidance for the top 20 application types, and
streamlining end-to-end registration
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Delivery against
project milestones
and realising the
benefits of Agricultural
competitiveness white
paper reforms

Operational
plan 2017–18

The APVMA implemented several initiatives
under the white paper reforms.
In the area of registration pathways, we:
the fast-track pilot, and
•reviewed
implemented the recommendations by
changing online services, instructional
material and guidance material on
the website

Level of satisfaction
with information and
guidance materials
Extent and
satisfaction with
APVMA consultative
processes
Level of stakeholder
engagement in
implementing
regulatory frameworks

Regulator
performance
framework—2.1,
2.3, 6.1

the module descriptors and
•revised
consulted with industry in June 2018.

The revisions, and additional website
functionality to improve the usability of
the descriptors, will be implemented in
the first quarter of 2018–19

to work on the draft antifouling
•continued
paint guideline. IT improvements to online
services are being tested. The antifouling
paint guideline will be published on the
website in the first quarter of 2018–19.
To transform the user experience, we:
the end-to-end registration
•completed
project in August 2017; recommendations
are being actioned through the business
process improvement projects

tailored guidance material. The
•developed
first two application types were published
in August 2017. A workshop was held with
industry representatives in November
2017 to support drafting of content for
the generic application types. A workshop
was also held in March 2018 to help draft
content for changes to formulations
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Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure
(Continued from previous page)

risk assessment manuals.
•developed
A draft chemistry risk assessment manual

improvements to the content
•identified
and usability of the current data
guidelines, which will be implemented
in the first quarter of 2018–19

first phase of the archive website
•The
decommission was completed in

December 2017. Further work was
undertaken to transition the application
summaries to the current website and
complete the decommission in the first
quarter of 2018–19.
All projects were monitored by the Major
Projects Board.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

for public consultation was published on
our website in May 2018. The remaining
manuals for environment, residues,
toxicology, human health and efficacy
are being progressed for consultation
and publishing on the website in the
first quarter of 2018–19

Key activities: Update the APVMA Client Service Charter and investigate internal reform
to consolidate the monitoring and management of client feedback channels
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

The revised client
service charter
implemented and
feedback channels
streamlined

Operational
plan 2017–18

A comprehensive review of the client service
charter commenced in June 2018 and APVMA
will undertake further consultation with
industry clients and stakeholders next year.
In June 2018, we introduced a
complaint handling policy to improve
our feedback systems and complaint
management practices.
See Key activity: Survey clients and
stakeholders to inform development of the
APVMA stakeholder engagement strategy.

Client service
standards met

Corporate plan
2017–18

Level of satisfaction
with the quality and
timeliness of advice
on decisions

Regulator
performance
framework—2.2

The APVMA Case Management and
Administration Unit received 6335 calls
and 7684 emails. Phone messages and
emails were checked daily and every
effort was made to meet our client
response performance timeframes (client
service charter).
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Key activity: Improve information on the APVMA website through an audit and
review process
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Increased positive and
decreased negative
feedback about the
quality of online
information

Operational plan
2017–18

Via a feedback mechanism at the bottom of
each web page, we received:

Level of satisfaction
with information and
guidance materials

Regulator
performance
framework—2.1

•93 positive ratings – up 4% from last year
negative ratings – up 19% from last
•105
year. Increased negative feedback is
being investigated and addressed.

neutral ratings – down 23% from
•14
last year.
We received the following feedback reports
through a form on the online services portal:

•13 positive – up 9% from last year
•26 negative – down 12% from last year
•45 neutral – up 3% from last year.
Audit and review of the website:
are 4704 individual pages on the
•there
APVMA website. In 2017–18, 2053 pages
were reviewed and 715 new pages
were created.
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Focus area: Implement legislative reform
Key activity: Finalise and embed business improvements in response to the 2017 ANAO
report on the APVMA’s implementation of agvet chemical reforms (2014)
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Business
improvements are
implemented

Operational
plan 2017–18

Progress against ANAO
Recommendation 1—
Internal quality framework

of pre-application assistance
•provision
to clarify the nature and levels of
assessment required before clients
submit an application

planning at the
•evaluation
commencement of evaluation, including
requests for advice from expert areas

planning for external scientific
•project
assessments, including providing
guidance to reviewers on previous
related decisions

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

We continued to improve our assessment
process to increase efficiency and
timeliness, all the while ensuring
appropriate levels of risk management
are applied. Improvements include:

review of science-based
•peer
recommendations from both external
and internal experts before these
recommendations are accepted by the
APVMA. Applicants are also given the
opportunity to review these reports
before a regulatory decision is made

consultation as required
•public
by legislation for major applications

(i.e. before the decision to register a
product with a new active constituent or
where the application is an extension of
use to a new major food group).
The business model for the APVMA in
Armidale embeds a Chief Regulatory Scientist.
One of the key roles of this function is to
further support quality decision‑making across
our regulatory functions. Planning commenced
for an internal quality framework that will be
implemented after our move to Armidale.
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Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Business
improvements are
implemented

Operational
plan 2017–18

(Continued from previous page)
We continued to identify, monitor and
respond to emerging regulatory issues.
New technologies used in crop production
and animal husbandry may require different
regulatory frameworks and risk analysis
approaches. The authority has been
preparing for the regulation of products
of nanotechnology and biotechnology in
collaboration with international and national
experts from industry, academia, research
institutes and other regulatory agencies.
APVMA scientists continued to work with
other Australian Government regulatory
agencies responsible for regulating chemicals
and biological agents through the Regulatory
Science Network (RSN). A key objective of the
RSN is to help improve the performance of
Australian Government regulatory agencies by
bringing together senior scientists to discuss
regulatory and technical issues.
See also Key activity: Continue engaging
and harmonising with relevant international
forums, including facilitating APVMA
attendance at forums such as the OECD and
VICH; Key activity: Define and implement
the regulatory science projects to inform
regulatory frameworks; and Key activity:
Deliver the APVMA Accelerated Regulatory
Science Training Program—Diploma of
Government (Regulatory Science).

Progress against Recommendation 2—
Measures and targets in improving
effectiveness and efficiency
The APVMA achieved overall performance
rates of 73% within timeframe, including 70%
for product registration (pesticides 63%,
veterinary medicines 81%), 86% for active
approvals and 67% for permits.
See Strategy 2—Deliver high-quality
decision-making that is timely, sciencebased and proportionate to the risks being
managed and Focus area: Maintain a
strong focus on delivering APVMA’s core
regulatory responsibilities, while seeking to
achieve improvements around application
processing efficiency.
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Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Business
improvements are
implemented

Operational
plan 2017–18

(Continued from previous page)
The Independent review of assessment
performance delivered recommendations
to improve regulatory efficiency of APVMA
decision making in January 2018. All
recommendations were accepted, with
implementation to occur in the forward
3 years.

Progress against ANAO
Recommendation 3—
Governance arrangements
We improved arrangements for current
and future change programs to strengthen
governance and project management in
line with best practice. Program and project
boards were established to provide oversight,
and dedicated project teams managed the
implementation of the white paper reforms
and the relocation to Armidale.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

See Key activity: Scrutinise options
around processing timeframes to identify
improvements through an independent review.

The Major Projects Board membership
was revised and it now oversees projects
identified by the APVMA’s executive
leadership team as critical to the future
success of the agency. The projects include
those funded under the white paper, and
other projects that relate to the APVMA’s
reform agenda (such as the response to
the review of assessment performance).
See also Focus area: Define, implement,
embed and optimise the application of the new
APVMA business model based in Armidale.

Progress against ANAO
Recommendation 4—Business risks
See Key activity: Implement the Enterprise
Risk Framework.
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Focus area: Stabilise and build on the existing user experience
Key activity: Continue to undertake application assessment forums and manage
proactive engagement of clients
Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Improved client
engagement

Operational
plan 2017–18

Feedback mechanisms
are in place and used
to improve service to
regulated entities

Regulator
performance
framework—5.2,
6.1

In our Proactive Stakeholder Engagement
Program, regular face-to-face meetings or
teleconferences were held with the 30 most
frequent applicants to discuss the status and
planning of current and future applications.
These most frequent applicants account
for about 50% of all major applications.
Pre-application assistance (PAA)
provides technical advice to clients on
the relevance or suitability of data, reports
and international assessments before they
submit applications. This year, PAA advice
was provided for 135 applications, which
included 44 PAA meetings.

Level of stakeholder
engagement in
implementing
regulatory frameworks

Key activity: Continue to implement the APVMA ICT Strategic Plan and continue work on
decommissioning legacy systems and improving application stability
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Performance measure

Source

Result against performance measure

Reduced number
of legacy business
systems

Operational
plan 2017–18

Effective and effective
APVMA business
processes

Regulator
performance
framework—1.3

The last APVMA application using the Ingres
database management system is scheduled
for migration by the end of 2018. This will
finalise the planned decommissioning of
legacy platforms.
We are also rationalising the number of
servers maintained within our managed
infrastructure in preparation for migration
of the infrastructure to cloud-hosted
arrangements that will be implemented
under the Enabling technology program.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
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Corporate and operational plans
As an independent statutory authority, the APVMA is required to conduct rigorous
corporate planning and reporting. Our planning and reporting requirements are set out
in the Administration Act.
Our central planning document is the APVMA corporate plan, which defines the principal
objectives of the APVMA and gives a broad outline of the strategies devised to achieve our
purpose. The corporate plan aligns with the APVMA Regulator Performance Framework,
which outlines additional key performance measures.
In addition, each year we develop an operational plan that sets out the actions required
to implement our corporate strategies and objectives. We measure our operational
effectiveness annually through the performance indicators in the corporate and
operational plans and the PBS.

Governance
The APVMA is a corporate Commonwealth entity and is subject to the PGPA Act. The
APVMA is a body corporate with a separate legal identity from the Commonwealth of
Australia. The CEO of the APVMA is responsible for the governance and management
of the APVMA, with the support of the executive team (see Chapter 2) and the Audit
Committee (see below).
To ensure decision-making is best practice when delivering scientific assessment and
operational effectiveness, the APVMA governance structure makes responsibilities
clear. The APVMA CEO is the accountable authority for purposes of the PGPA Act and is
appointed as a statutory officer by the minister. The CEO, who has responsibility for the
management and governance of the authority, together with the APVMA’s executive team,
is responsible for delivering against the performance measures within the Australian
Government Regulator Performance Framework.

Internal committees
The APVMA governance committees (Table 3) adhere to the principles of public sector
governance to provide accountability, transparency, integrity, stewardship, efficiency
and leadership.
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Table 3: APVMA governance committees
Description

Executive
Leadership
Team

The team, chaired by the CEO, provides strategic, whole-of-organisation
advice and direction relevant to decision-making, management and oversight
of the APVMA’s operations and performance.

Senior
Leadership
Team

The team provides a forum for APVMA senior operational managers to
identify opportunities for cross-agency collaboration, innovation and
performance improvement, and to develop leadership.

Audit
Committee

This subcommittee reports to the CEO. It helps the authority to discharge
its legislative responsibilities regarding financial reporting, performance
reporting, risk oversight and management, internal control, and compliance
with relevant laws and policies.

Science
Quality
Committee

This subcommittee reports to the executive team. It advises and provides
recommendations on matters of science and science quality relevant to the
functions of the APVMA.

Registration
Quality
Committee

This subcommittee reports to the executive team. It oversees the quality of
decision-making in the registration activities of the APVMA, and ensures that
systems, processes and capability support high-quality decision-making that
is consistent and legally defensible.

Enforcement
Committee

This subcommittee reports to the executive team. It oversees the potential
use and actual use of coercive powers.

Armidale
Relocation
Advisory
Committee

This committee, established by the APVMA CEO, provides strategic advice
to the executive on major aspects of the relocation and the transition of our
operations from Canberra to Armidale, including the business model, digital
strategy, strategic risk and mitigation, stakeholder issues and engagement.

Relocation
Program
Board

The board oversees the relocation program of work and ensures that the
program meets its intended business outcomes by providing strategic
guidance and support. The board advises the CEO on key aspects of the
programs on relocation and enabling technology, and provides input into the
Armidale Relocation Advisory Committee.

Major
Projects
Board

The board oversees the progress of projects that are significant to the
operational direction of the authority. The board oversees project deliverables,
resourcing requirements, timeframes and management of risks. It also ensures
that cross-project opportunities and issues are identified and addressed.

Staff
Consultative
Committee

The committee was established under the APVMA Enterprise Agreement
2017–20, and provides a forum to ensure that staff are appropriately
consulted about significant decisions that may affect the workplace.

Work Health
and Safety
Committee

The committee provides a framework to allow workers to be consulted on
significant work health and safety decisions that affect their working lives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Group
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The governance structure, senior management and guidance material support APVMA
staff in delivering high-quality scientific assessment and operational effectiveness, and
in adhering to the public sector values to be impartial, committed to service, respectful,
accountable and ethical.
APVMA guidance material for employees includes policies relating to security, appropriate
management of confidential information, financial and procurement practices, use of
social media, conflicts of interest, travel, performance management and workplace safety.
These policies operate in line with, and in addition to, requirements under the APS Code of
Conduct and legislative framework governing the conduct of APS employees. The APVMA
undertakes corporate risk management with regular review by executive staff.

APVMA Audit Committee
The APVMA Audit Committee is part of the APVMA governance and risk framework.
Its terms of reference are to provide independent assurance and advice to the
CEO concerning the risk control and compliance framework, the APVMA’s financial
and management responsibilities, and its performance reporting and external
accountability responsibilities.
The committee members include an external independent chair, a representative from an
external organisation, and a member of the APVMA executive team. Committee observers
and advisers can include representatives from the Australian National Audit Office,
the internal auditor, the APVMA CEO, Chief Financial Officer and other management
representatives.
The Audit Committee met four times in 2017–18: in September and November 2017, and
in February and June 2018. Attendance at Audit Committee meetings is shown in Table 4.
Table 4: Attendance at Audit Committee meetings
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Representative

Member’s organisation

Meetings eligible
to attend

Meetings
attended

Peter Hoefer

External independent chair

4

4

Claude Gauchat

External organisation representative

4

4

Lisa Croft

APVMA

1

1

Amy Fox

APVMA

2

2

Stefanie Janiec

APVMA

2

2

In 2017–18, the Audit Committee considered:

•the 2016–17 financial statements
•annual assessment of the Protective Security Policy Framework
•annual assessment of the Regulator Performance Framework
•business risk management and continuity plans
•the Financial Sustainability Plan
•the agency’s relocation to Armidale.
No conflicts of interest that would conflict with the proper performance of the Audit
Committee’s functions were declared at any meeting in 2017–18.

Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry
Liaison Committee

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of the MLSILC are to:
the views of industry members and auditors on issues of an operational,
•obtain
technical or strategic nature
the development and review of operating procedures, manufacturing standards
•advance
and guidelines relevant to the Australian Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme and the
Overseas Good Manufacturing Practice Scheme

industry input into APVMA operational planning processes relating to
•provide
manufacturing issues
•identify opportunities for regulatory reform within the existing framework
the effect of proposed policy changes on APVMA operations, and
•consider
implications for industry
•facilitate communication with industry and other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

The APVMA established the Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison
Committee (MLSILC) as a forum to discuss strategic and operational issues relating to the
Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme and the Overseas Good Manufacturing Practice Scheme
with industry representatives and auditors.
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Meetings and attendance
The committee met twice in 2017–18, in November 2017 and March 2018. Figures for
membership and attendance at MLSILC meetings are shown in Table 5.
Table 5: Attendance at Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison
Committee meetings
Representative

Member organisation

Meetings
eligible
to attend

Meetings
attended

Susan Hanns (Chair)

APVMA

1

1

Michelle Wooster (Chair)

APVMA

1

1

Garry Hartridge (Secretary)

APVMA

2

2

Ian Saunders

Veterinary Manufacturers and
Distributors Association

2

1

Martin Snowball

Animal Medicines Australia Ltd

2

2

Noelene Davis

Feed Ingredients and Additives
Association of Australia

2

2

Ian Wheatley

Auditors’ representative

2

2

Issues considered
Issues considered in 2017–18 included:

•review and status of the Code of Good Manufacturing Practice
•certificates of export
•frequency and timing of overseas audits
requirements for approval of an overseas site and an Australian site
•differing
of manufacture
role of the MLSILC and its interaction with the Industry Steering Group, which was
•the
established for a finite time and purpose to support consultation during the 2016
review of Good Manufacturing Practice

•frequency of committee meetings and timelines for committee meeting documents.
Declarations of interest
There were no matters declared by any member of the MLSILC that would give rise to any
personal material conflict of interest. The APVMA maintains records of declarations.
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APVMA Relocation Advisory Committee
The APVMA Relocation Advisory Committee (ARAC) was established by the APVMA CEO in
2016 to provide strategic advice on major aspects of the relocation and transition of the
APVMA to Armidale.
The committee is not a decision making body and does not have direct say on the
day-to‑day management of the relocation project or the allocation of resources. ARAC
members include industry representatives, APVMA staff, university delegates, and
representatives of local and federal government departments. The committee provides
input and advice into a range of relocation related projects, such as risk management,
development of the business operating model and stakeholder impacts where appropriate.
The terms of reference for ARAC are available at apvma.gov.au

Meetings and attendance
The committee met four times throughout the year, once in Armidale during September
and three times in Canberra during December, March and June. Meetings hosted
in Canberra were supported via teleconference, with members electing to attend
face‑to‑face or remotely through teleconference.

Table 6: Attendance at APVMA Relocation Advisory Committee meetings
Representative

Member organisation

Meetings eligible
to attend

Meetings
attended

Chris Parker

APVMA

4

3

Stephanie Janiec

APVMA

2

2

Amy Fox

APVMA

2

2

Paul Kruspe

APVMA

2

2

Mitch Levy

APVMA

2

2

Paul Grutt

APVMA

2

2

Lisa Croft

APVMA

2

2

Bob Smith

APVMA

2

2

Ala Mosleh

APVMA

2

1

Alex Bagnara

APVMA

1

1

Roxanne Ruscoe

APVMA

1

1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Attendance was recorded in the minutes for each meeting as outlined in Table 6.
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Table 6: (Continued)
Representative

Member organisation

Meetings eligible
to attend

Meetings
attended

Cindy Briscoe

Department of Agriculture and
Water Resources

2

2

Ian Thompson

Department of Agriculture and
Water Resources

1

1

David Williamson

Department of Agriculture and
Water Resources

2

0

Andrew McDonald

Department of Agriculture and
Water Resources

1

1

Ben Stapley

Animal Medicines Australia

4

3

Tirza Anglin

Animal Medicines Australia

1

1

Matthew Cossey

CropLife

4

0

Alastair James

CropLife

4

3

Reg Kidd

National Farmers Federation

4

3

Prof. Peter Creamer

University of New England

4

2

Greg Lawrence

Armidale Regional Council

1

1

Tony Broomfield

Armidale Regional Council

4

2

Jim Adams

Veterinary Manufacturers and
Distributors Association

4

4

Issues considered
Issues considered in 2017–18 include:

•relocation risk management
•the business operating model for the APVMA in Armidale
•timeframe performance – for approvals, permits and product registrations
to IT systems to facilitate a move to cloud-based systems to
•improvements
streamline the registration process
•development and delivery of the Accelerated Regulatory Science Training Program
•construction of the new leased premises in Armidale
•inputs from white paper reform projects and deliverables
•consultation on the Independent review of assessment performance.
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Related entity transactions
The APVMA contracted the Australian Government Department of the Environment and
Energy to provide environmental scientific assessment advice; during 2017–18 there were
four individual transactions totalling $73 706. We did not contract the Department of
Health for environmental scientific assessment services in 2017–18.

Consultation and collaboration
Our stakeholders are at the core of our business, so consulting and working with them,
and with other regulatory agencies, to ensure that we meet their needs is a priority.
Stakeholders from industry, chemical users, government and the community provide
input and are involved in our decision-making and the development of guidelines and
operational policy.
We work closely with the Australian Government Department of Agriculture and Water
Resources to ensure that policy and legislation development and change is effective
and best placed to help our clients and stakeholders.

We also continued our program of international engagement in 2017–18, including
participating in key international scientific and regulatory forums (Table 7).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

In 2017–18, the APVMA conducted 46 public consultations on various topics,
including chemical registrations, trade advice notices, public release summaries,
chemical reviews and revisions to the Australia New Zealand Food Standards Code.
Key client and stakeholder engagements included two-day industry information sessions
in Canberra (September 2017), which provided first-hand feedback on regulatory
impediments and a view of new science and industry challenges.
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Table 7: APVMA participation in international forums
Meeting

Date

Participant

OECD Expert Group on Electronic
Exchange of Pesticide Data

30 August 2017
(teleconference)

Mitch Levy, Director ICT

Society for Environmental
Toxicology and Chemistry, North
America Focused Topic Meeting:
Risk assessment of chemical
mixtures: from scientific evidence
to environmental regulation (Denver,
United States)

6–8 September
2017

Janine Knight, Director,
Environmental Assessment

FAO/WHO Joint Meeting on Pesticide
Residues (Geneva, Switzerland)

7–21 September
2017

Sam Margerison, Director,
Chemistry and Manufacture

Global Summit on Regulatory
Science (Brasilia, Brazil)

18–20
September 2017

Phil Reeves, Chief Regulatory
Scientist

EU Good Manufacturing Practice
Inspectors Working Group

September 2017
(teleconference)

Susan Hanns, Director,
Manufacturing Quality
and Licensing

3rd Global Minor Use Summit
(Montreal, Canada)

1–5 October
2017

Alan Norden, Executive
Director, Registration
Management and Evaluation

Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee
on Food Additives—veterinary
drug residues in food (Geneva,
Switzerland)

16–27 October
2017

Chris Schyvens, Director,
Health Assessment

OECD Residues Chemistry
Expert Group

Ongoing
(teleconference)

Jason Lutze, A/g Executive
Director, Scientific Assessment

35th International Cooperation
on Harmonisation of Technical
Requirements for Registration
of Veterinary Medicinal Products
(Tokyo, Japan)

13–16 November
2017

Chris Parker, Chief Executive
Officer

VICH Anthelmintic Export
Working Group

Ongoing
(teleconference)

Michelle Wooster, Director,
Manufacturing Quality and
Licensing

6th OECD Network on Illegal Trade
in Pesticides

26–27
February 2018
(teleconference)

Elizabeth Butt, A/g Director
Compliance and Monitoring

Utz Mueller, Principal Scientist

Table 7: (Continued)
Codex Committee on Pesticide
Residues eWorking Group

(Ongoing
teleconference)

Jason Lutze, A/g Executive
Director, Scientific Assessment
and Chemical Review
Sam Margerison, Director
Chemistry and Manufacture

22–27 April
2018

James Deller, A/g Director
Residues and Trade

Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee
on Food Additives (Geneva,
Switzerland)

12–21 June
2018

Utz Mueller, Principal Scientist

OECD Expert Group on Bio
Pesticides, Expert Group on Minor
Use and Working Group on Pesticides
(Paris, France)

18–22 June
2018

Alan Norden, Executive
Director, Registration
Management and Evaluation

36th International Cooperation
on Harmonisation of Technical
Requirements for Registration
of Veterinary Medicinal Products
(Bruges, Belgium)

25–28 June
2018

Alan Norden, Executive
Director, Registration
Management and Evaluation

A/g = acting; EU = European Union; FAO = Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations;
OECD = Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development; VICH = International Cooperation on
Harmonisation of Technical Requirements for Registration of Veterinary Medicinal Products; WHO = World
Health Organization

Advertising and market research
With the exception of recruitment advertising, the APVMA did not undertake any
advertising in 2017–18. In early 2018, we engaged a market research company to
support the development and delivery of the APVMA client and stakeholder survey.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Codex Committee on Residues of
Veterinary Drugs in Foods (Chicago,
United States)

Obtaining information from subsidiaries
The APVMA has no subsidiaries.
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Accountability
The APVMA has internal and external structures and processes to ensure that we meet
our legislative responsibilities and relevant standards.

Corporate risk management
In 2017–18, we reviewed and updated the APVMA Risk Management Framework.
The framework consists of a suite of documents that guides strategies for how the
APVMA deals with risk on an ongoing basis. The framework describes the:

•APVMA’s policy for the management of risk
•methodology used in the assessment of risk across the APVMA
of APVMA’s risk registers and the integration of risk management
•operation
through the APVMA
APVMA works to develop a risk-aware organisational culture in which proactive
•way
risk management is at the forefront of the decision-making process
•means for employees to understand their roles in active risk management.
The Strategic Risk Register specifies the most significant and material business risks
managed by the APVMA. The Operational Risk Register identifies and categorises key
business risks that need structured management within the APVMA.

Fraud control
The APVMA fraud risk assessment and control plan complies with the Commonwealth
fraud control guidelines. The plan includes fraud prevention, detection, investigation,
reporting and data collection procedures.
No cases of fraud were reported or identified in 2017–18.

Reporting
The APVMA Gazette lists all APVMA notices and decisions as required under the Agvet
Code, including registrations, reviews and changes to registration status. The gazette
was published fortnightly and is available from our website.
The APVMA prepares reports of its performance in meeting regulatory
obligations, including:

•registration of chemical products
•approval of active ingredients
•issuance of permits
•licensing and audit of veterinary manufacturers
•preliminary assessment and pre-application assistance.
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The reporting includes:

•the number of applications started and finalised
•the proportion of applications finalised within legislative timeframes
•work in progress at the end of the period.
Adverse Experience Reporting Program
Under the Administration Act, the APVMA is required to publish information about the
AERP. This annual report contains the required details of the number of AERP reports
received by the APVMA during the year. We also provide a summary of any action taken
by the APVMA during the year in relation to adverse experience reports (see Key activity:
Maintain and energise the Adverse Experience Reporting Program (AERP) to better inform
current and future decisions).

APVMA service charter

We started a review of the client service charter in 2018 and will undertake further
consultation with industry clients and stakeholders in 2018–19.

Privacy
The APVMA adheres to the Privacy Act 1988 and our privacy policy is on our website.
Our operations were not subject to any report or determinations by the Privacy
Commissioner in 2017–18.

Judicial decisions and reviews by outside bodies
Parliamentary committees and other reviews

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

We aim to provide the highest quality service to all our stakeholders. The APVMA Client
Service Charter outlines the standards of service that external parties can expect in their
dealings with us. The charter applies to all stakeholders, including the chemicals industry
that we regulate, other government agencies, chemical users and the community.

The APVMA appeared before the Senate Estimates Rural and Regional Affairs and
Transport Legislation Committee hearings on 24 October 2017 (supplementary),
1 March 2018 (additional) and 23 May 2018 (budget).
In March 2018, the APVMA appeared before the House of Representatives Committee
public hearing of the ANAO report on Pesticide and Veterinary Medicine Regulatory Reform.

71
3

APVMA ANNUAL REPORT 2017–18

Auditor-General’s reports
The ANAO performed the following audits for the APVMA in 2017–18:

•APVMA 2016–17 Financial Statements
•Pesticide and Veterinary Medicine Regulatory Reform.
Ombudsman
During 2017–18, the Commonwealth Ombudsman conducted three investigations that
concerned the APVMA.

Courts and tribunals
During 2017–18, the APVMA was notified of two matters before the Administrative
Appeals Tribunal.

Office of the Australian Information Commissioner reviews
During 2017–18, there were no notices of review or complaint received by the APVMA from
the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner.

Work health and safety
As part of our work health and safety arrangements, the APVMA:
and developed arrangements to ensure employees’ health, safety and
•promoted
wellbeing at work, in accordance with the Work Health and Safety Act 2011
•provided operational guidelines for the operation of the Health and Safety Committee
mechanisms for reviewing, varying and informing employees about work
•maintained
health and safety arrangements, and for dealing with disputes during consultation.
The APVMA Health and Safety Committee monitored and informed APVMA-wide
work health and safety activities. Two new health and safety representatives, based
in our Armidale office, were elected to the committee in 2018 and undertook the
required training.
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Health and wellbeing initiatives
In 2017–18, we implemented various initiatives to help staff manage their health and
wellbeing at work and at home. We provided free influenza vaccinations for staff, and
invited staff to undertake onsite fitness and general health assessments with qualified
health practitioners.
Our focus on ensuring a positive employee experience included the promotion of physical
and mental health and wellbeing initiatives. The APVMA facilitated active workstation
assessments for staff in Armidale and Canberra to address the hazards of working in an
increasingly digital environment, and actively promoted the benefits and facilities available
through our employee assistance program.

Disability reporting

The Commonwealth Disability Strategy has been overtaken by the National Disability
Strategy 2010–20, which sets out a 10-year national policy framework to improve the
lives of people with disability, promote participation and create a more inclusive society.
A high‑level, two-yearly report will track progress against each of the six outcome areas
of the strategy and present a picture of how people with disability are faring. The first of
these progress reports was published in 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Since 1994, non-corporate Commonwealth entities have reported on their performance
as policy adviser, purchaser, employer, regulator and provider under the Commonwealth
Disability Strategy. In 2007–08, reporting on the employer role was transferred to the APS
Commission’s State of the service reports and the APS Statistical Bulletin. These reports
are available on the Commission’s website. Since 2010–11, entities have not been
required to report on these functions.
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Ecologically sustainable development and
environmental performance
The APVMA adopted an environmental management system that meets the requirements
of s. 516A of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999, the Agvet
Code and the Greening of Government program. The environmental management system
uses ISO 14001:2004 as its framework.
The APVMA strives to be a ‘paperless’ office, implementing an electronic document
and records management system to significantly reduce the amount of paper and printer
consumables used within the office. With implementation of the digitisation project
under the Enabling technology program, the APVMA will progressively expand its digital
(i.e. paperless) operations over coming years.
We also worked to reduce our environmental impact by:

•recycling paper, plastic and kitchen waste to reduce landfill
•maintaining water tanks for watering gardens at the APVMA’s premises in Canberra
the whole-of-government Energy Efficiency in Government Operations target
•meeting
for energy use of 7500 megajoules per person per year
•purchasing 100 per cent recycled paper
•using environmental criteria guidelines for all purchases
•using VMware computer hardware to reduce electricity consumption
•using high-efficiency T5 lighting and movement-activated lighting
our communication and collaboration capabilities (e.g. meeting room and
•improving
desktop videoconferencing) to minimise travel
multifunction-device printers that reduce paper waste by authentication and
•using
secure release of all print, copy, scan and fax jobs
onsite worm farms at the Canberra office to process waste food collected
•maintaining
from APVMA kitchens to reduce waste going to landfill.
The APVMA created ‘ECONet’, which is a voluntary network of staff who encourage and
promote environmentally friendly office practices. It was modelled on ECONets already
established in the Australian Government Department of Environment and Energy and
the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources. The APVMA ECONet identifies
opportunities and implements initiatives that reduce our environmental footprint in both
the Canberra and Armidale offices.
With construction of the new building in Armidale, ECONet will help the APVMA to ensure
that environmentally responsible processes and functionality are considered in the fit-out
planning and in the establishment of support contracts.
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Summary of financial performance
Tables 8–12 give an overview of APVMA financial performance for 2017–18. Full details
are in the audited financial statements on the following pages.

Income
The APVMA’s total income for 2017–18 was $39.195 million (Table 8) and incorporates
white paper reform and Armidale relocation appropriation funding. This is an increase of
$4.140 million (11.81 per cent) on the previous year.
Table 8: APVMA income
Income source

Income ($’000)

%

18 802

47.97

Application fees

6 246

15.94

Annual fees (renewal fees)

5 604

14.30

Other receipts from industry

2 272

5.80

6 056

15.45

215

0.54

39 195

100.00

Receipts from industry
Levies

Parliamentary appropriation
Other revenue

Total income
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Table 9: Agency resourcing statement
Resourcing description

Actual available
appropriation
for 2017–18

Payments
made
in 2017–18

Balance
remaining
in 2017–18

($’000)

($’000)

($’000)

Ordinary annual service

–

–

–

Department expenses

–

–

–

Previous year departmental appropriation

9 282

9 282

–

Departmental appropriations

6 056

3 287

2 769

215

215

–

Total

15 553

12 784

2 769

Special appropriation

32 924

26 064

6 860

Total resourcing and payments

48 477

38 848

9 629

Revenue from independent sources

– = nil

Expenditure
Total operating expenses for 2017–18 were $39.908 million (Tables 10 and 11), an
increase of $3.893 million (10.81 per cent) on the previous year.
Table 10: APVMA expenditure (Including comparison with PBS)
2017–18
actual
expenditure

% of
expenditure

2017–18
budget
(per PBS)
($’000)

($’000)
Employee benefits

29 200

73.17

26 000

Supplier expenses

8 842

22.16

11 352

Depreciation

1 796

4.50

1 728

70

0.17

–

39 908

100

39 080

Other

Total expenditure

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Individual lines of expenditure

– = nil; PBS = Portfolio Budget Statement
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Table 11: Expenses for Outcome 1
Outcome 1: P
 rotection of the health and safety of people, animals, the environment,
and agricultural and livestock industries through regulation of pesticides
and veterinary medicines
2017–18
budget

2017–18
actual

2017–18
variance

2016–17
actual

($’000)

($’000)

($’000)

($’000)

–

–

–

–

6 056

6 056

–

4 744

215

215

–

192

Special appropriation

32 809

33 637

(828)

31 079

Total expenses for outcome 1

39 080

39 908

(828)

36 015

Program 1.1 (APVMA)
Department expenses
Ordinary annual service
(Appropriation Bill 1)
Revenue from independent sources

– = nil

Equity
The APVMA recorded a net operating deficit of $0.880 million for 2017–18, resulting in an
equity balance at 30 June 2018 of $6.418 million.

Audit results
The APVMA achieved an unqualified audit result, and there were no adverse findings.

Financial reserve
The APVMA’s revenue is primarily received as levy payments in December and June and
registration payments in May and June. Thus, the APVMA receives the majority of its
revenue at three times during the year. Cash holdings can exceed $7 million at various
stages during the financial year.
To manage this, the APVMA monitors daily cash balances to ensure that cash is available
to pay creditor expenses, particularly during times when the cash balances are falling in
the months when income is not anticipated.
The APVMA operates to keep the cash level above $2 million as an operating reserve (an
equity position of $7 million is equivalent to three months operating expenses).
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Consultancies
In 2017–18, we entered into 26 new consultancy contracts involving total actual
expenditure (including capitalisation) of $0.972 million. In addition, nine ongoing
consultancy contracts were active this year, involving total expenditure of $1.647 million
as at 30 June 2018.
Fifteen new consultancies commenced in 2017–18 due to activity associated with the
white paper reform and Armidale relocation projects.
Selection processes are described in terms drawn from the Commonwealth procurement
guidelines. ‘Direct sourcing’ refers to a selection process in which neither a tender nor a
panel was used. In these situations, the APVMA obtained multiple quotes, the number of
which was determined by the value of the procurement.
APVMA Finance Procedure 4, ‘Purchasing’, outlines the number of quotes required
(Table 12).
Table 12: Purchasing number of quotes required
Purchase limit for goods/services

Quotes required

to $2000

One quote

$2001 to $10 000

Two written quotes

$10 001 to $100 000

Three written quotes

$100 001 to $400 000

High-value procurement procedures

$400 000 and over

Tender

Exemptions to these requirements may be approved in special circumstances.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

APVMA annual reports contain information about actual expenditure on contracts for
consultancies. Information on the value of contracts and consultancies is available on
the AusTender website.
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ANAO letter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
for the year ended 30 June 2018:
(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability (Financial Reporting) Rule 2015; and
(b) present fairly the financial position of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
as at 30 June 2018 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
The financial statements of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority, which I have
audited, comprise the following statements as at 30 June 2018 and for the year then ended:







Statement by the Accountable Authority and Chief Finance Officer;
Statement of Comprehensive Income;
Statement of Financial Position;
Statement of Changes in Equity;
Cash Flow Statement; and
Notes to the financial statements, comprising a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report.
I am independent of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority in accordance with
the relevant ethical requirements for financial statement audits conducted by the Auditor-General and
his delegates. These include the relevant independence requirements of the Accounting Professional
and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants to the extent
that they are not in conflict with the Auditor-General Act 1997 (the Code). I have also fulfilled my other
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
Accountable Authority’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
As the Accountable Authority of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible under the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act
2013 for the preparation and fair presentation of annual financial statements that comply with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the rules made under that Act. The
Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for such internal control as the Chief Executive Officer
determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for assessing the
Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, taking
into account whether the entity’s operations will cease as a result of an administrative restructure or for
any other reason. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the assessment
indicates that it is not appropriate.
GPO Box 707 CANBERRA ACT 2601
19 National Circuit BARTON ACT
Phone (02) 6203 7300 Fax (02) 6203 7777
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office Auditing Standards, I exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:
 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;
 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control;
 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Accountable Authority;
 conclude on the appropriateness of the Accountable Authority’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease
to continue as a going concern; and
 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that I identify during my audit.
Australian National Audit Office

Senior Director
Delegate of the Auditor-General
Canberra
14 September 2018

Financial Performance

Josephine Bushell
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Statement by CEO and CFO

Financial statements
Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2018
Original
Budget

Notes

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

2018
$'000

29200
8842
1 742
54
70
39 908

25 389
8 751
1674
139
62
36 015

26 000
11352
1 728

39 080

213
213

189
189

215
215

2
215

3
192

215

39 693

35 823

38 865

38 980

34 863

38 995

( 713)

( 960)

130

( 167)

( 201)

( 167)
(880)

( 201)
(1161)

NET COST OF SERVICES
Expenses

Employee benefits

1.1A

Suppliers

1.18

Depreciation and amortisation

2.2A

Impairments

2.2A

Finance costs
Total Expenses

1.1C

Own-Source Income
Own-source revenue

Other revenue

1.2A

Total own-source revenue

Gains
Gains from sale of assets
Total gains

1 .2B

Total Own-Source Income
Net Cost of Services

Revenue from Government

1.2(

Surplus/(Deficit)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items not subject to subsequent reclassification to profit and loss
Impairment of assets offset against asset
revaluation surplus

2.2A

Change in asset revaluation surplus

Total other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive lncome/(Loss)

130

Financial Performance

The above statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page2
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Budget Variance Commentary:
Commentary is provided_for major variances between the actual amounts and the original budget. Variances are considered to be
'major' (or significant) where:

(a) for items in the Statement of Financial Position, the variance between budget and actual is greater than +/-10% of the budget
and greater than $250,000 for the line item
(b) for items in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the variance between budget and actual is greater than +/-2% of expenses.
Variance explanations are also provided where major changes to business activities may not be numerically material, but by their
very nature will assist users in understanding underlying business changes that have occurred since the original budget was
released.
Where a revised budget has been presented to Parliament, the APVMA may include variance explanations of major variances
between the revised budget and actual amounts where they are considered relevant to an assessment of the discharge of
accountability and to an analysis of the APVMA's performance.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Employee benefits are $3.200 million (12.5%) over budget, due to an increase in non-ongoing and contract staff engaged to assist
with the completion of the White Paper Reform projects, support for information technology and business systems, and
development of the digital strategy for enabling future technology.
Supplier expenses were under budgeted due to reduced expenditure on external scientific service providers.
Depreciation and amortisation reflects reduced investment in internally developed software (intangibles). New enabling technology
is under development to support the APVMA 1s future regulatory activities.
Revenue from Government was on budget.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 30 June 2018
Original
Budget

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

2018
$'000

2 269
8 081
10 350

2 767
7206
9 973

1400
7745
9145

500
818
5 980
271
7 569

1001
554
5 593
331
7 479

945
510
6 988
415
8858

17 919

17 452

18 003

3 023
2196
5 219

2 451
1458
3 909

4 573
640
5 213

Total provisions

5 678
604
6 282

6 211
534
6745

6 319
490
6 809

Total Liabilities

11501

10 654

12 022

6418

6 798

5 981

6 675
(11431
886
6418

6175
( 430)
1053
6 798

Notes

ASSETS

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

2.1A

2.18

Total financial assets
Non-Financial Assets
Leasehold improvements

2.2A

Property, plant and equipment

2.2A

Intangibles

2.2A

Other non -financial assets
Total non-financial assets

2.2B

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Payables
Supp liers

Other payables
Total payables

2.3A

2.3B

Provisions
Employee provisions

4.1A

Other provisions

2.4A

Net Assets
EQUITY
Contributed equity

Retained surplus
Reserves

1 254
5 981

The above statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Financial Performance

Total Equity

6 675

I 1 948)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 30 June 2018

Budget Variance Commentary:

Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents are above budget due to the timing of a cash drawdown and subsequent supplier payments. The cash

drawdown occurred prior to 30 June 2018 but the payment of suppliers occurred after that date.
Trade and other receivables (primarily the receivable from the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources) is above budget due
to higher contributions from industry.

Leasehold improvements were impaired by $149,000 in 2016-17 and a further $167,000 in 2017-18.
Property, plant and equipment has been impaired over the past two years by $231,000. Acquisitions were $532,000 higher than
anticipated due to the acquisition of Armidale furniture.
Investment in software slowed down whilst new enabling technology was investigated. Investment in new IT technology will support
the APVMA's future business model in Armidale. APVMA continues to review its non-financial assets and has impaired those that will
become redundant.
Suppliers and other payables are on budget.
Employee provisions are below budget due to the workforce management and some contraction prior to the relocation to Armidale.
Retained surplus is higher than anticipated due to increased revenue.
Reserves are below budget due to higher asset impairments.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 30 June 2018
Original Budget
CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Notes

2018

2017
$'000

$'000

5 528
5 528

6175
6175

500

137
510
647

500
500

6 675

6175

6 675

530
530

( 2 078)
(2078)

2018
$'000

Opening Balance
Balance brought forward from previous period

617S

Adjusted opening balance

617S

Transactions with owners
Contributions by owners
Equity injections

Departmental Capital Budget (DCB)
Total transactions with owners

500

Closing balance as at 30 June
RETAINED SURPLUS

Opening Balance
( 430)

Balance brought forward from previous period
Adjusted opening balance

( 430)

Comprehensive income
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period

( 713)

Total comprehensive income

( 713)

( 960)
( 960)

130
130

Closing balance as at 30 June

(1143)

( 430)

( 1948)

1053

1254
1254

1254
1254

ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE

Opening Balance
Balance brought forward from previous period
Adjusted opening balance

1053

Comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income

2.2A

Total comprehensive income
Closing balance as at 30 June

( 167)
( 167)

( 201)
( 201)

886

1053

1254

6798

7 312
7 312

5 351
5 351

( 960)
( 201)
( 1161)

130

TOTAL EQUITY

Opening Balance
Balance brought forward from previous period

6798

Comprehensive income
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period

( 713)

Other comprehensive income

( 167)

Total comprehensive income

( 880)

130

Transactions with owners
Contributions by owners

500

137
510
647

500
500

6 418

6 798

5 981

Equity injections

Departmental capital Budget (DCB)
Total transactions with owners
Closing balance as at 30 June

500

The above statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Financial Performance

Adjusted opening balance
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policy

Contributions by owners
Amounts appropriated which are designated as 'equity injections' for a particular year {less any formal reductions) and Departmental
Capital Budgets (DCBs) are recognised directly in contributed equity in that year.

Other Distributions to Owners
The Governance, Performance and Accountability (Financial Reporting) Rule 2015 (FRR) require that distributions to owners be
debited to contributed equity unless it is in the nature of a dividend.

Budget Variance Commentary:
Statement of Change in Equity

The APVMA recognised an additional $0.823 million in onerous property lease payments to account for a reduced Canberra based
office workforce from 1 July 2019. This resulted in a budgeted equity variance of $0.391 million as at reporting date.
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 June 2018
Original

Notes

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Budget
2018
$'000

31932

33 728

32 550

6056
1055
34
165
39 242

4 744
970
11
146
39 599

5 495
1136

39181

29 306
9271
38577
665

24 810
12 212
37 022
2 577

25 832
12 516
38 348
833

376
1434
1810
(1810)

249
945
1194
(1194)

125
1200
1325
(1325)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration}
Act 1992 contribution

Corporate Commonwealth entity payment item
Net GST ·received

Interest received
Other cash received
Total cash received
Cash used

Employees
Suppliers

Total cash used
Net cash flows from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash used
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangibles

Total cash used
Net cash flows from or (used by) investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Contributed equity

647
647
647

Total cash received
Net cash flows from or (used by) financing activities

500
500
500

Net increase or (decrease) in cash held

( 498)

1383

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

2 767

1384

1392

2269

2 767

1400

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

2.lA

Budget Variance Commentary:

Operating Cash and cash equivalents were over budget due to higher than anticipated June income.
The cash used is shown as employee benefits and supplier expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

The agency brought forward $561,000 into 2017-18 as part of the re phasing of the relocation contingency reserve.
Investment in property, plant and equipment, has been low however and will increase as the APVMA develops its Armida le capability.

Financial Performance

The above statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OVERVIEW

Objectives of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
The Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) is an Australian Government controlled not-for-profit corporate
entity. The APVMA is responsible for the assessment and registration of pesticides and veterinary medicines and for their regulation up to
the point of retail sale. The APVMA administers the National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (NRS) in
partnership with the States and Territories along with the active involvement of other Australian government agencies. Its role is to
independently evaluate the safety and performance of chemical products intended for sale, ensuring that the health and safety of people,
animals and the environment are protected.

The APVMA was established under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992. Following the introduction of the
Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 on 1 July 2014, the APVMA was reclassified as a corporate Commonwealth
entity.

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Report
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and are required by section 42 of the Public Governance, Performance
and Accountability Act 2013.
The financial statements and notes have been prepared in accordance with:
a) Public Governance, Performance and Accountability (Financial Reporting) Rule 2015 (FRR); and
b) Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period.
The APVMA financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for
certain assets at fair value. Except where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial
position. The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars uriless otherwise
specified.
New Australian Accounting Standards
Adoption of new Australian Accounting Standard Requirements
No accounting standards have been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the standard.

No new standards applicable to the current reporting period having any material effect on the APVMA's financial statements have been
issued prior to the signing of the statements by the accountable authority and chief finance officer.
Taxation
The APVMA is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST).
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except
a) where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
b) for receivables and payables where applicable.

Events After the Reporting Period
There were no subsequent events between balance date and signing of the financial statements that had the potential to significantly affect
the ongoing structure and financial activities of the APVMA.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE• This section analyses the financial performance of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2018

1.1: Expenses

1.lA: Employee benefits
Wages and sa laries

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

22 919

19 706

2050
1557
1851
823
29200

1916
1420
1936
411
25 389

1945

1940
3174
191
902
473
6 680

Superannuation:
Defined contribution plans
Defined benefit plans
Leave and other entitlements
Other employee benefits

Total employee benefits

Accounting Policy
Accounting policies for employee related expenses is contained in the people and relationships section.

1.1 B: Suppliers
Goods and services supplied or rendered

Consultants
Contractors

Travel
IT services
Other
Total goods and services supplied or rendered

Goods supplied
Services rendered

Total goods and services supplied or rendered
Other supplier expenses
Operating lease rentals - external parties

2 510
481
1010
490
6436
585
5 851
6436

379
6 301
6680

2 251
155

Total other supplier expenses
Total supplier expenses

2406
8842

1 793
278
2 071
8 751

70
70

62
62

1.lC: Finance Costs
Unwinding of discount
Total finance costs

Accounting Policy

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial Performance

Workers compensation premiums
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - This section analyses the financial performance of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2018

1.1: Expenses
2018
$'000

2017
$'000

Leasing Commitments
In Armidale, the APVMA is sharing office space with the Department of Human Services as well as procuring over-flow tenancy in a
nearby office. These short term accomodation options for the agency will remain in place until the permanent office is constructed
in mid 2019 and is being funded from the appropriation provided for reloca tion. The APVMA has negotiated a fifteen year lease for

the new building including two five year options. The construction of the new building is due for completion in time for the APVMA's
occupation in mid·July 2019.
The APVMA will retain a satellite office in Canberra. The current lease at 18 Wormald St, Symonston Canberra ACT Australia is
operational until October 2020, and is subject to annual rent increases of 3.75%. The reduced occupancy has resulted in an
adjustment to the 2016·17 provision for onerous property lecise payments by $0.865 million, totalling $1.355 million. This will
continue to be reviewed each year for any changed circumstances.

Commitment for minimum lease payments in relation to non•cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:
Within 1 year

1700

Between 1 to 5 years

5633

Over 5 years

Total operating lease commitments

1528
3 229

12 772

zo 105

4 757

Accounting Policy
Where an asset is acquired under a finance lease, the asset is capitalised at either the lease property's fair val ue or, if lower, the
present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the contract. A liability is recognised at the same time and for the
same amount.
The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease. Leased assets are amortised over the lease period. Lease payments
are allocated between the principal component and the interest expense.
Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight·line basis which is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the
leased assets.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE -This section analyses the financial performance of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary

Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2018

1.2: Own-Source Revenue, Gains and Revenue from Government
2018

2017

$'000

$'000

36
177
213

153
189

OWN-SOURCE REVENUE

1.2A: Other revenue
Resources received free of charge
Remuneration of auditors
Other revenue
Total other revenue

1.28: Gains
Sale of assets
Total other revenue

36

2
2

3
3

Accounting Policy
Resources Received Free of Charge
Resources received free of charge are recognised as revenue when fair value can be reliably determined and the donated services
would have been purchased. Use of those resources is recognised as an expense. Resources received free of charge are recorded
as either revenue or gains depending on their nature.

Other Revenue
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the completion stage of co ntracts at the reporting date. The
revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be relia bly measured
and the probable economic benefits from the transaction will flow to the APVMA.
The contracts completion stage (at the reporting date) is determined by reference to the proportion that costs incurred to date
relate to the transaction's estimated costs.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.

Financial Performance
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - This section analyses the financial performance of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority for the year ended 30 June 2018

1.2: Own-Source Revenue, Gains and Revenue from Government
2018

2017

$"000

$"000

6056

4 744

32924

30 119
34 863

REVENUE FROM GOVERNMENT
1.ZC: Revenue from Government
Corporate Commonwealth entity payment item
Department of Agriculture and Water Resources contribution
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals {Administration) Act 1992

(refer below)
Total revenue from Government

38980

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources contribution is equal to the following receipts paid by industry:

Levies
Annual renewal fee
Product application fees
Good manufacturing practice {GMP) licence fees

Permits, actives and other fees
Penalties and Infringements

Total industry contributions

18 802
5 604
6 246

17 022
5639
5 368

1033
1106

1097
955
38
30119

133

32924

Accounting Policy

Revenue from Government
Funding received or receivable from non-corporate Commonwealth entities (appropriated to the non-corporate Commonwealth
entity as a corporate Commonwealth entity payment) is recognised as Revenue from Government by the corporate
Commonwealth entity unless the funding is in the nature of an equity injection or a loan.

Fees and Levies
Fees and levies are recognised as income when they are received. This is in line with the reclassification of the APVMA as a
corporate Commonwealth entity.
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FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets

used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.1: Financial Assets

$'000

2017
$'000

2 269
2 269

2 767

6860
6860

5 868
5 868

2018

2.1A: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

2 767

Accounting Policy
Cash is recognised at its nominal amount.

2.18: Trade and Other Receivables

Contribution receivable
Department of Agriculture and Water Resources

Total contribution receivable
Other receivable
GST receivable from the Australian Ta xation Office
Undrawn appropriations from Department of Finance
Other Sundry Debtors
Total other receivables
Total trade and other receivables (gross)

192
500

139
647

529
1221
8 081

552
1338
7 206

Less impairment allowance account:
Goods and services
Total impairment allowance account
Total trade and other receivables (net)

8 081

7 206

Credit terms for goods and services were within 30 days.

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments, and are not quoted in an active market, are classified as
'receivables'. Receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment.

Financial Performance

Accounting Policy
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FINANCIAL POSITION • This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets

used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.1: Financial Assets
Reconciliation of the impairment allowance account:
Movements in relation to 2018

Goods and
services
$'000

Total
$'000

Goods and
services
$'000
(17)

Total
$'000
(17)

17

17

Opening balance

Amounts recovered and reversed
Amounts written off
New impaired assets

Closing balance
Movements in relation to 2017

Opening balance
Amounts recovered and reversed
Amounts written off

New impaired assets
Closing bala nce

Accounting Policy

Impairment
Trade and Other Receivables are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period .
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FINANCIAL POSITION• This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets
used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets
2.2A: Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles
Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances for 2018

leasehold

Other

Computer

Improvements

PP&E

$'000

$'000

Software1
$'000

Total
$'000

1759
( 758)
1001

1008
( 454)
554

9 315
( 3 722)
5 593

12 082
( 4934)
7148

1587

527
1587

I 40)

( 14)

I 54)

( 167)
( 334)

I 2221

( 1186)

( 167)
( 1 742)

500

( 93)
92
818

5980

( 93)
92
7298

1759
( 1259)
500

1441
( 623)
818

As at 1 July 2017
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Total as at 1 July 2017
Additions:

Purchase

527

Internally developed
Revaluation recognised in other comprehensive income
Impairments recognised in the operating result
Impairments recognised in other comprehensive income
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Disposals:
Disposal
Accumulated depreciation of disposed assets

Total as at 30 June 2018
Total as of 30 June 2018 represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Total as of 30 Jone 2018 represented by:

9 645

12845

I 3 665)

I 5547)

5980

7 298

1. The carrying amount of computer software includes $0.755 million purchased software and $5.979 million internally generated

No leasehold improvements nor major property, plant and equipment and intangibles are expected to be sold or disposed of within
the next 12 months due to the relocation to Armidale or otherwise.
Revaluations of non•financial assets
All revaluations were conducted in accordance with the revaluation policy stated over page. On 30 June 2016, an independent
valuer conducted the revaluations. This valuation remains current for three years.

Financial Performance

software.
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FINANCIAL POSITION • This section analyses Australian Pesticides and v'eteririary Medicines Authority's assets

used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets

Accounting Policy

Assets are recorded at cost on acquisition except as stated below. The cost of acquisition includes the fair value of assets
transferred in an exchange and any liabilities undertaken. Financial assets are initially measured at their fair value plus transaction

costs where appropriate.

Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and income at their fair value at the date
of acquisition, unless acquired as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, assets are
initially recognised as contributions by owners at the amounts at which they were recognised in the transferor's accounts
immediately prior to the restructuring.

Asset Recognition Threshold
Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the statement of financial position, except for
purchases costing less than $5 000, which are expensed in the year of acquisition (other than where they form part of a group of
similar items which are significant in tota l).
The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located. This is particularly relevant to 'make good' provisions in property leases taken up by the APVMA where there exists an
obligation to restore the property to its original condition. These costs are included in the value of the APVMA's leasehold
improvements with a c~rresponding provision for 'make good'.

Revaluations
All assets are initially recognised at cost. Property, plant and equipment are then carried at fair value once they have been revalued
in accordance with policy. Valuations are conducted with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amounts·of assets do not
differ materially from the assets' fair values at reporting date. The regularity of independent valuations depends upon the volatility
of movements in market values for the relevant assets. Assets are presently revalued on a three year cycle.
All assets (except for intangibles) were revalued as at 30 June 2016 by an independent valuer.
Reva luation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is credited to equity under the heading of asset
revaluation reserve except to the extent that it reverses a previous revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was
previously recognised through the operating result. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets are recognised directly through the
operating result except to the extent that they reverse a previous revaluation increment for that class.
Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the asset
restated to the revalued amount.
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FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and yeterinary Medicines Authority's assets

used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets

Depreciable property plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives
to the APVMA using, in all cases, the straight-line method of depreciation.
Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and methods are reviewed at each reporting date and necessary adjustments are

recognised in the current, or current and future reporting periods, as appropriate.
Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following useful lives:

I

Leasehold improvements

I

Property, Plant and Equipment

2018
Shorter of lease term or
useful life
3 to 15 years

2017
Shorter of lease term or
useful life

3 to 15 years

Impairment
All assets were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2018. Where indications of impairment exist, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset's recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily
dependent on the asset's ability to generate future cash flows, and the asset would be replaced ifthe APVMAwere deprived of the
asset, its value in use is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost.
The APVMA is committed to relocate to Armida le by mid-July 2019, however, not withstanding the construction of a new facility, it
has been decided that a satellite office will need to be maintained in Canberra. Existing assets will not be relocated to the new
facility as they will be required in the satellite office.

Derecoqnition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal.

Intangibles
The APVMA's intangibles comprise internally developed and externally acquired software for internal use. These assets are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its anticipated useful life. The useful lives of the APVMA's software are 3 to 10
years (2017: 3 to 10 years).
All software assets were assessed for indications of impairment as at 30 June 2018.

Financial Performance

No major items of property, plant and equipment are expected to be sold or disposed of within the next 12 months.
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FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets
used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.2: Non-Financial Assets
2018

2017

$'000

$'000

Prepayments
Total other non-financial assets

271
271

331
331

Total other non-financial assets expected to be received in:
No more than 12 months

271

320

271

331

2.28: Other Non-Financial Assets

More than 12 months

Total other non-financial assets

11

No indicators of impairment were found fpr other non-financial assets.

2.3: Payables

2.3A: Suppliers
Trade creditors and accruals
Total supplier payables

2018

2017

$'000

$'000

3023
3023

2 451

291

231

2 451

Settlement is usually made within 30 days.

Accounting Policy
Suppliers

Supplier payables are measured at their nominal amounts.

2.38: Other Payables
Salaries and wages
Superannuation

34

24

lease incentive

so

133

1821

1 070
1458

lease liability
Total other payables

2196

Accounting Policy
Other Payables

liabilities for short-term employee benefits and te rmination benefits expected within t welve months of the reporting period are
measured at their nominal amounts.
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FINANCIAL POSITION - This section analyses Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority's assets

used to conduct its operations and the operating liabilities incurred as a result.
Employee related information is disclosed in the People and Relationships section.

2.4: Other Provisions
2018

2017

$'000

$'000

Total other provisions

604
604

534
534

Carrying amount 1 July 2017

534

Unwinding of discount or change in discount rate
Closing balance 30 June 2018

70
604

472
62
534

2.4: Other provisions
Provision for restoration obligations

The APVMA currently has an agreement for the leasing of premises which has provision requiring the APVMA to restore the premises

to their original condition at the conclusion of the lease. The APVMA has made a provision to reflect the present value of this
obligation.

Accounting Policy

Other provisions

The provision for make-good was assessed and re-estimated by the independant valuer as part of the assets revaluation on 30 June
2016. The additional estimated provision for make-good is amortised over the balance.of the lease to ensure that the target
provision will be available when required.

Financial Performance
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
FUNDING - This section identifies the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicine's funding structure

3.1 : Regulatory Charging Summary
3.lA: Regulatory Charging Summary

The APVMA does not receive material funding from the Government, but is funded through fees, levies and other charges imposed

under various sections of legislation.
The only change to th is is when the Government funds specific projects to improve and/ or enhance the APVMA's ability to perform
its legislated functions such as the White Paper Reforms and the relocation to Armidale, NSW.

These fees, levies and charges are credited to a special appropriation created under s.58 (6) of the Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992 , which is held and managed by the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources for and on
behalf of the APVMA.
The purpose of this special appropriation is to:
(a) pay or discharge the costs, expenses or other obligations incurred by the APVMA in the
performance of its functions
(b) make payment of any remuneration and allowances payable to any person under this Act
(c) make any other payments that the APVMA is authorised or required to make by or under
this Act or any other law of the Commonwea lth or any law of a State or Territory that is
expressed to confer functions or powers on the APVMA.
The balance on this account is recorded as a receivable from the Department at Note 2.18: Trade and other receivables Contributions receivable.

5868

2017
$'000
9 024

33 392

31304

39 260

40 328

(32400)

(34460)

6860

5 868

2018
$'000
Balance carried from previous period
External revenue :
levies, fees and charges
Available for payments:
Amounts applied (Drawn down)
Balance carried to next period and represented by:

Documentation (Cost Recovery Implementation Statement/s) for the above activities is available at: www.apvma.gov.au/node/4161
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PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS - This section describes a range of employment and post employment benefits

provided to our people and our relationship with key people.

4.1 : Employee Provisions
2018

2017

$'000

$'000

3 874
1804
5 678

4 334

4.1A: Employee provisions
Long service leave
Annual leave

Total employee provisions

1877

6 211

Accounting Policy
Liabilities for shorMerm employee benefits and termination benefits expected within twelve months of the reporting period's end
are measured at their nominal amounts, and reported in Note 2.3B Other payables.

Leave
The liability for employee benefits includes provision for annual leave and long service leave.
The leave liabilities are calculated on the basis of employees' remuneration at the estimated salary rates that will be applied at the
time the leave is taken, including the entity's employer superannuation contribution rates to the extent that the leave is likely to be
taken during service rather than paid out on termination.
The liability for long service leave has been determined by reference to the 'short-hand method' as outlined in the Resource
Management Guide No. 125 - Commonwealth Entities Financial Statements Guide as at 30 June 2018. The estimate of the present
value of the liability takes into account attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation and is discounted using the
10 year bond rate at 30 June 2018.

Separation and Redundancy
Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. The entity recognises a provision for termination when it has
developed a detailed formal plan for the terminations and has informed those employees affected that it will carry out the
terminations.

Superannuation
The APVMA's staff are members of the Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS), the Public Sector Superannuation Scheme
(PSS), the PSS accumulation plan {PSSap) or other superannuation funds held outside the Australian Government.
The CSS and PSS are defined benefit schemes for the Australian Government. The PSSap is a defined contribution scheme.

The entity makes employer contributions to the employees' defined benefit superannuation scheme at rates determined by an
actuary to be sufficient to meet the current cost to the Government. The entity accounts for the contributions as if they were
contributions to defined contribution plans.
The liability for superannuation recognised as at 30 June 2018 represents outstanding contributions.

Financial Performance

The liability for defined benefits is recognised in the financial statements of the Australian Government and is settled by the
Australian Government in due course. This liability is reported in the Department of Finance's administered schedules and notes.

Page 22

105
3

APVMA Annual Report 2017–18

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS - This section describes a range of employment and post employment benefits

provided to our people and our relationship with key people.

4.2: Key Management Personnel Remuneration
Key management personnel are those persons who comprise the Executive Leadership team {ELTJ at anytime throughout the year in
either a permanent or acting capacity. The ELT has the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the APVMA, recognising that ultimate responsibility resides with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) who is in turn
responsible for the APVMA's performance to the relevant Portfolio Minister.
For the 2017-18 financial year, key management personnel for the APVMA comprised the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), two Deputy
Chief Executive Officers {DCEO), three Executive Directors (ED), and the Chief Scientist. During the year, the Chief Operating Officer
(COO) position was abolished and two Deputy Chief Executive Officer (DCEO) positions created recognising the extra managerial
responsibility relating to the relocation to Armidale. An additional ED was recruited to manage the implementation of the APVMA's
information technology capability. Sixteen officers (including acting staff) have occupied these positions throughout the 2017-18
financial year.
Kev management oersonnel remuneration is reoorted in the table below:

Short-term employee benefits:

2018

2017

$

$

Other long-term employee benefits:

1 767 661
315 095
192 946

1389 231
252 733
145 856

Total key management personnel remuneration expenses 1

2 275 702

1 787 820

Post-employment benefits:

The total number of key management personnel included in the above table is sixteen (2016-17: twenty staff members).
Of these sixteen staff, twelve individuals held positions for only part of the year (2016-17: seventeen individuals were in this
category).
The Chief Executive's remuneration and other benefits are determined by the Remuneration Tribunal, and paid by the APVMA.

1. The above key management personnel remuneration excludes the remuneration and other benefits of the Portfolio Minister. The
Portfolio Minister's remuneration and other benefits are set by the Remuneration Tribunal and are not paid by the entity.

4.3: Related Party Disclosures
The APVMA is an Australian Government controlled entity, and is part of the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
portfolio. Related parties to this entity are the Portfolio Minister, the Executive Leadership team, comprising the Chief Executive
Officer, two Deputy Chief Executive Officers, three Executive Directors, the Chief Regulatory Scientist, and other Commonwealth
Government entities.
Transactions with related parties:
Given the breadth of Government activities, related parties may transact with the government sector in the same capacity as
ordinary citizens. Such transactions include the payment or refund of taxes, receipt of a Medicare rebate or higher education loans.
These transactions have not been separately disclosed in this note.
All transactions with other Commonwealth Government entities have been made under normal terms and conditions and, therefore
have not been disclosed seperately.
There have been no transactions with related parties this year. All APVMA staff, including the the Executive Leadership Team, are
required to sign an annual conflict of interest declaration.
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MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES-This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

manages financial risks within its operating environment

5.1: Contingent Assets and Liabihties
Quantifiable Contingencies
The APVMA has no quantifiable contingent liabilities (2016-17: nil) relating to litigation costs.

Unquantifiable Contingencies
The APVMA had no unquantifiable contingencies.

Accounting Policy

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are reported in the notes.
They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an asset or liability in respect of which the
amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain and
contingent liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote.

5.2: Financial Instruments
2017
$'000

2 269
2 269
2 269

2 767
2 767
2 767

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Other liabilities
Trade creditors and accruals
Other payables
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Total financial liabilities

3 023
2146
5169
5169

2 451
1325
3 776
3 776

34
34

11
11

(751)
(751)

(426)
(426)

5.2B: Net gains or losses on financial assets
Receivables
Interest revenue
Net gain/(loss) from financial assets

S.2C: Net gains and losses on financial liabilities
Other Liabilities
Lease liability (increase)/decrease
Net gain/(loss) from financial assets

Financial Performance

2018
$'000
5.2A: Categories of financial instruments
Financial Assets
Receivables financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total receivables
Total financial assets
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Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES• This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
manages financial risks within its operating environment

5.2: Financial Instruments
5.2D: Fair value of financial instruments

The net fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.
The net fair values for trade creditors and other liabilities are approximated by their carrying amounts.

Accounting Policy

Financial assets
The APVMA classifies its financial assets in the receivables category.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets are recognised and derecognlsed upon trade date.

Effective Interest Method
Income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or
loss.

Receivables
Trade receivables, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as 'receivables'. Receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Interest
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets held at amortised cost - if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred for receivables, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount is reduced by way of an allowance account. The
loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised upon 'trade date'.

Other Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. These liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective interest basis.
Supplier and other payables are recognised at amortised cost. Liabilities are recognised to the extent that the goods or services have
been received .
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MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES - This section analyses how the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority
manages financial risks within its operating environment

5.3 : Fair Value Measurements

Accounting Policy
Non-financial assets
Initial recogn ition

Assets are recorded at cost on acquisition except as stated below. The cost of acquisition includes the fair value of assets transferred in an
exchange and any liabilities undertaken. Financial assets are initially measured at their fair value plus transaction costs where appropriate.

Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and income at their fair value at the date of
acquisition, unless acquired as a consequence of restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, assets are initially
recognised as contributions by owners at the amounts at which they were recognised in the transferor' s accounts immediately prior to the
restructuring.
Revaluatfons

Property, plant and equipment are then carried at fair value once they have been revalued in accordance with policy. Va luations are
conducted with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amounts of assets do not differ materially from the assets' fair values at
reporting date. The regularity of independent valuations depends upon the volatility of movements in market values for the releva nt
assets. Assets are presently revalued on a three year cycle. If there are any major impacts on any asset group, the effect is assessed and
the asset's valuation will be adjusted. As the asset groups are not very volatile, the impacts are usually minimal.
All assets (except for intangibles) were revalued as at 30 June 2016 by an independent valuer.

Valuation method

2018
$'000

2017
$'000

501

1001

Non-financial assets
Leasehold improvements
Property, plant and equipment

Deprecia ted replacement cost adjusted for
impairment
Depreciated replacement cost adjusted for
impairment

971

554

1472

1555

Financial Performance
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Acronyms and abbreviations
Admin Act

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992

AERP

Adverse Experience Reporting Program

agvet

agricultural and veterinary

ANAO

Australian National Audit Office

APS

Australian Public Service

APVMA

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CSIRO

Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation

FAO

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations

ICT

information and communications technology

IT

information technology

MLSILC

Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee

OECD

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development

PAA

pre-application assistance

PBS

Portfolio Budget Statement

PGPA Act

Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013

UNE

University of New England

VICH

International Cooperation on Harmonisation of Technical Requirements
for Registration of Veterinary Medicinal Products

WHO

World Health Organization

Glossary
The component of a pesticide or veterinary medicine product that
is responsible for its physiological or pharmacological action.

adverse
experience

Any undesirable experience arising from the use of a chemical;
adverse experiences may affect human or animal health, the
environment or other factors.

antibiotic

A substance that inhibits the growth of or destroys microorganisms.

applicant

A person or company who applies to the APVMA to register a
pesticide or veterinary chemical for use in Australia.

approved label

The market product label that carries text approved and published
by the APVMA.

compliance

Compliance with any applicable agvet law. See also noncompliance.

cost recovery

Fees and charges relating to the provision of government goods and
services (including regulation) to the private and other nongovernment
sectors of the economy.

extension of use

The agreed use of a pesticide or veterinary chemical for a purpose
other than those specified on the original label. Registered products
must be used only for purposes that are specified on the label, and
the APVMA must grant permission for any extensions of use.

good
manufacturing
practice

Standards that ensure that products are consistently manufactured to
the quality standards appropriate for their intended use and in accord
with their registration specifications.

licence

Authority to manufacture pesticides or veterinary medicines
according to s. 123 of the Agvet Code.

minor use

A use that would not produce sufficient economic return to an
applicant to meet the cost of registering the product for that use.

nanotechnology

The design, characterisation and application of materials engineered
at a molecular (nanometre-scale) level.

noncompliance

Noncompliance with any applicable agvet law. Noncompliance may
include the sale and use of unregistered products, supply of restricted
products to unauthorised users, unapproved labels, unfounded claims
in advertising or other media, or active constituents that do not
conform to APVMA standards.

GLOSSARY

active
constituent
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pesticides

Substances or mixtures of substances intended for preventing,
destroying, repelling or mitigating any pest; also known as agricultural
chemical products.

registrant

A person or company who registers a pesticide or veterinary medicine
product for use in Australia.

registration

Official recognition that a pesticide or veterinary medicine is safe and
will work when used according to the label. Before an agricultural or
veterinary chemical product can be legally supplied, sold or used in
Australia, it must be registered by the APVMA.

statutory time

The legislatively prescribed timeframe in which the APVMA must
process applications for registration.

this year;
2017–18

1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.

veterinary
medicines

Substances or mixtures of substances intended for treating diseases
or conditions in animals.

Compliance index
Requirement

Page

Details of the legislation establishing the body

8–9

Summary of the objects and functions of the entity as set out in the legislation

8–9

Purposes of the entity as included in the entity’s corporate plan for the period

8, 20

Name(s) of the person(s) holding the position(s) of responsible Minister(s)
and the titles of the responsible Minister(s)

8

Directions given to the entity by a Minister under an Act or instrument during the period

9, 16

Government policy orders that applied in relation to
the entity during the period under section 22 of the Act

3, 16

If, during the period, the entity has not complied with a direction or order
referred to in paragraph (d) or (e)—particulars of the non-compliance
Annual performance statements for the entity for the period
A statement of any significant issue reported to the responsible
Minister under paragraph 19(1)(e) of the Act that relates to non-compliance
with the finance law in relation to the entity

20–56

14

11, 22, 60

An outline of the organisational structure of the entity
(including any subsidiaries of the entity)

10

An outline of the location (whether or not in Australia)
of major activities or facilities of the entity

3, 5, 15, 16, 23

Information in relation to the main corporate governance
practices used by the entity during the period
Related entity transactions
Any significant activities and changes that affected the
operations or structure of the entity during the period
Particulars of judicial decisions or decisions of administrative tribunals
made during the period that have had, or may have, a significant effect
on the operations of the entity

COMPLIANCE INDEX

Information on the accountable authority, or each member
of the accountable authority, of the entity during the period

Not applicable

60–74
67

2–4, 5, 16

71–72

Particulars of any report on the entity given during the period by:

115
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Requirement

Page

the Auditor General, other than a report under section 43 of the Act; or

72

a Committee of either House, or of both Houses, of the Parliament or

71

the Commonwealth Ombudsman or

72

the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner

72

Obtaining information from subsidiaries
Details of any indemnity that applied during the period to the accountable
authority, any member of the accountable authority or officer of the entity
against a liability (including premiums paid, or agreed to be paid, for
insurance against the authority member or officer’s liability for legal costs)
An index identifying where the requirements of this section and
section 17BF (if applicable) are to be found.

69

Not applicable

115

Other legislation:
work health and safety (Work Health and Safety Act 2011)

116

72–73

advertising and market research (Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918)

69

ecologically sustainable development and environmental performance
(Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999)

74

Index
A
Accelerated Regulatory Science Training Program
accountability

2, 5, 36, 38, 43

70–1 see also corporate governance and management

accountable authority

11, 22, 60

acronyms and abbreviations

112

actives

35, 40

Administrative Appeals Tribunal

43, 72

Adverse Experience Reporting Program

42, 71

advertising and market research

69

agency resourcing statement

79

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code

3, 8, 26, 43, 70, 74
8

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Act 1994
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Regulations 1995
Agricultural competitiveness white paper reforms
agvet chemicals
Agvet Code
aims and objectives
ANAO

v, 8, 9, 60, 71

8–9

5, 14, 23, 28–9, 43, 46, 50, 55, 78, 81
see chemicals

see Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code
23, 35, 46 see also roles and functions
see Australian National Audit Office

annual performance statement
accountable authority statement
results against performance criteria

22
see performance

antifouling paint guideline

50

antimicrobial resistance

37

applications
50

fees and levies

15

guidance material for applicants
performance summary
pre-application assistance

3, 5, 21, 46, 50
35–6
35, 46, 53, 56

reporting obligations

70–1

statistics

5, 35

systems improvements

INDEX

fast-track pilot

47, 50

117
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timeliness

2, 3, 5, 32, 35, 36, 40–1, 54

use of international assessments

3, 36, 44–5, 56

Armidale NSW, relocation to

3–4, 23–7

Armidale offices

3, 16, 23, 25

consultancies

81

digital strategy

3, 5, 16, 23, 27

funding

23, 27, 78

Government Policy Order

3, 16

Relocation Program Board

3, 5, 24, 25, 61

risk management

28

staff at Armidale

5, 15, 16, 26

staff survey on intentions to relocate

26

Armidale Relocation Advisory Committee

3, 5, 24, 61, 65–6

assessment performance

35–6, 44

independent review of

2, 5, 36, 41, 46, 55

internal quality framework

53–4
see also applications; performance; registration

Audit Committee
Auditor-General
audits by APVMA

60, 61, 62–3
see Australian National Audit Office
48, 49 see also compliance activities

audits of APVMA
ANAO audits
of financial statements

53–5, 71, 72
80, 82–3

AusTender

81

Australia New Zealand Food Standards Code

67

Australian Information Commissioner

72

Australian Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme
63
see also Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee
Australian National Audit Office
APVMA financial statements audit report
APVMA operations audit

118

80, 82–3
53–5, 71, 72

B
Barton, Mary

37

biotechnology

54

business operating model
business processes

4, 16, 23, 26, 36, 53, 65
16, 29, 36, 50–4, 56
see also Agricultural competitiveness white paper reforms;
digital strategy; Strategy 1: Transform our business

C
Canberra office

3, 5, 15, 16, 23

Case Management and Administration Unit

51

chemicals
approvals

2, 35

APVMA performance
APVMA regulatory role
compliance

35–6, 40
8, 9, 20
46, 48–9

international assessments
reconsiderations
registrations

3, 36, 44–5, 56
40
35, 37, 50

safety issues

42

unregistered

48
see also applications; products

Chief Executive Officer
appointment

16

role

10, 11

statutory officer

60

summary and outlook

2–4

Chief Regulatory Scientist

13, 53

client service approach

46–56

service charter

51, 71
60–1

Commonwealth fraud control guidelines

v, 70

Commonwealth Ombudsman

72

Commonwealth procurement guidelines

81

communication

INDEX

committees

3, 31, 32 see also consultative processes; guidance material for industry

complaints handling

5, 51

119
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compliance activities
performance

46, 48–9

timeframes

40–1, 54

conferences, seminars and workshops

31, 37, 38, 39, 50, 68–9

conflict of interest declarations
Audit Committee

63

MLSILC

64

consultancies

81

consultative processes

24, 25, 31, 32, 44, 51, 53, 67 see also stakeholder engagement

contracts

81

corporate Commonwealth entity status of APVMA
corporate governance and management

9, 60
55, 60–74

committees

60–6

executive management and structure
corporate plan

10–13
20, 21, 60

performance against

see performance

corporate profile

8

corporate strategies

see strategies

cost-recovery practices

34

Croft, Lisa

4, 11

CSIRO

36, 38

Currie, Dwayne

13

customer service
client service approach

46–56

service charter

51, 71

D
decision-making

see Strategy 2: Deliver high-quality decision-making

declarations of interest
Audit Committee

63

MLSILC

64

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
Department of Health
Department of the Environment and Energy
Deputy Chief Executive Officers
Deputy Prime Minister

120

3, 30, 37, 67
37, 67
67
3–4, 5, 10, 11–12, 24
8

digital strategy

3, 5, 16, 23, 27

diplomas in regulatory science

2, 5, 36, 38, 43

disability reporting

73

E
ecologically sustainable development

74

ECONet

74

education campaigns

48

education in regulatory science

2, 5, 36, 38, 43

efficacy contestability pilot

47

emergency permits

40, 44

emerging technologies

37

employees

see staff

enabling legislation
enforcement activities

8–9
48 see also compliance activities

Enforcement Committee

61

enquiries

51

enterprise agreement

61

Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

74

environmental performance

74

environmental scientific assessment advice

67

equity
ethical standards
Executive Directors

14, 80
62
10, 12–13

Executive Leadership Team

11, 61

executive management and structure

10–13

expenditure

79–80

export certificates
external scrutiny

35
43, 71–2

fast-track pilot (registration pathways)

50

finance law compliance

14

financial performance
cost base and model
financial sustainability plan
financial statements

INDEX

F

14, 78–81
34
5, 23, 34
80, 85–109
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Fox, Amy

4, 12

fraud control

70

functions of APVMA

see roles and functions

funding

14, 23, 27, 34, 46, 78

G
General Counsel

13

glossary
governance structure

113–14
55, 60–7 see also corporate governance and management

Government Policy Orders
guidance material for APVMA employees
guidance material for industry
level of satisfaction with

3, 16
62 see also staff: training and development
3, 5, 45, 46, 50, 67
44, 52

H
Hartsuyker, Luke
Health and Safety Committee
human resources

8, 16
72 see also work health and safety
see staff

I
imports
consents

35

live microorganisms

38

monitoring

48

unregistered chemicals

48

income

14, 78

information and communications technology
business process support
digital strategy

3, 5, 16, 23, 27

legacy systems

56

strategic plan
innovations (‘world firsts’)
insecticides
instructional material
international assessments
international engagement

122

16, 27, 56

27, 56
2
2 see also pesticides
see guidance material
3, 36, 44–5, 56
2, 23, 33, 37, 43, 67–9

J
Joyce, Barnaby

8

judicial decisions

71–2

K
knowledge management

23, 29

L
legislative framework
enabling Acts

8–9

for levy imposition and collection

14

letter of transmittal

v

levies

14, 78, 80

Littleproud, David

8, 25

live microorganisms

38

location of staff

3, 5, 15, 16, 23

Lutze, Jason

12

M
macrolide

40

Major Projects Board
management and accountability

28, 51, 55, 61
see corporate governance and management

Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee

63–5

manufacturing audits and licensing

49, 63

market research

69

ministerial directions

9, 16

ministers responsible

8

mission statement

ix

monitoring and enforcement activities

see compliance activities

N
54

National Disability Strategy 2010–20

73

National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals
new technologies
noncompliance

8

INDEX

nanotechnology

54
see compliance activities

Norden, Alan

13

notifiable variations

35
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O
OECD

2, 33, 68

guidelines

47

Office of the Australian Information Commissioner reviews
offices of APVMA

72

see Armidale NSW, relocation to; Canberra office

Ombudsman

72

operating reserve

80

operational plan

20, 22, 60

organisational efficiency

see Agricultural competitiveness
white paper reforms; business processes

organisational structure

10

outcome

1, 21, 80

outlook

4

outreach

38

Overseas Good Manufacturing Practice Scheme
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